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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEH
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GHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE-_E-_—_F+-A=+—-HLEEZRE

Revenue increased 24.9% to approximately HK$1,793.0
million (for the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately
HK$1,435.8 million).

Gross profit increased 57.6% to approximately HK$424.8
million (for the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately
HK$269.6 million).

Gross profit margin increased 4.9 percentage points to 23.7%
(for the year ended 31 December 2021: 18.8%).

Operating profit was approximately HK$91.8 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2021: operating loss was
approximately HK$92.4 million).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$75.5 million (for the year ended 31
December 2021: loss attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$93.5 million).

A proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2022 of HK3.0 cents per share of the Company (the
“Share”) was recommended, together with the interim
dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share for the six months ended 30
June 2022 was declared, representing a total dividend of
HK4.0 cents per Share and the annual dividend payout ratio of
38.5%. No final dividend was recommended for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and no interim dividend was
declared during the six months ended 30 June 2021.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFFEHHEME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Years ended 31 December

BZ+t-A=t+—-HLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-N\E CZE-NF ZE-TF —T-—F ot oot 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FAT FAT FET FET TER
Revenue WA 2,052,708 2,043,095 1,353,099 1,435,826 1,793,025

Profit/(loss) before REFTERLAT

income tax WA (ER) 130,931 127,102 101,537 (94,405) 89,986
Income tax expenses FefiFx (34,850) (35,022) (26,937) (3,520) (20,144)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERN/(&E) 96,081 92,080 74,600 (97,925) 69,842

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
REEE REzKk&ARE

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
ZE-N\F ZET-NF CZTZTF T -F C—T--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FAT FTAET FET FET THET
ASSETS BE

Non-current assets EREEE 467,444 569,549 610,755 593,988 545,131
Current assets FEEE 1,237,607 1,269,396 1,192,680 1,144,736 1,204,330
Total assets BEHE 1,705,051 1,838,945 1,803,435 1,738,724 1,749,461

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEKkEE
Total equity B 1,090,530 1,130,906 1,192,334 1,094,446 1,131,481
Non-current liabilities ERBER 10,339 17,905 24,153 22,574 21,609
Current liabilities FEAE 604,182 690,134 586,948 621,704 596,371
Total liabilities BEGE 614,521 708,039 611,101 644,278 617,980
Total equity and liabilities EREXREE 1,705,051 1,838,945 1,803,435 1,738,724 1,749,461

RERRZERARAR o —T - —FFH 05
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KEY SHAREHOLDER VALUE INDICES

TERREERER

Revenue

[ ON

HK$ million & &7 7T
(% Change Z &) & 7 tb)

2018 2,052.7
_ 28 € D (+10.1%)
LI D (o5
_E ¢ ) (Zre
&, ¢ D (s o

2022 1,793.0
22 . I

- =S——

Basic earnings/(loss) per Share attributable to
owners of the Company

FARFEEANERESREXREF(HE)

HK cents 711l

2018 13.9
—z = € )(-7.9%)
09 ¢ 13.5
Es (-2.9%)
2020 108
k= k-5 (-20.0%)
28 ¢ 2021
(VA TR —¥=—%
17 -
e (N/A B )
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Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the audited annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

2022 was a challenging year, with high volatility in the
macro-economy, the recurrence of COVID-19 pandemic in China,
rising costs due to high inflation and fierce competition in the
business environment. However, as the global COVID-19 pandemic is
under control, various countries have gradually lifted the restrictions
on pandemic prevention, and economic activities and personnel flow
have gradually returned to normal, bringing light to the recovery of
the tourism industry. According to the data recently released by the
United Nations World Tourism Organization, every global region
recorded notable increases in international tourist arrivals, with more
than 900 million tourists travelled internationally in 2022, gradually
returning to 63% of pre-pandemic levels.

With the gradual recovery of the global tourism industry, the Group’s
overall performance has increased. The Group recorded an overall
revenue of approximately HK$1,793.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, an increase of 24.9% as compared with
approximately HK$1,435.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, in which the hospitality supplies business, operating supplies
and equipment (“OS&E") business and health care and hygienic
products business contributed approximately HK$1,376.9 million,
HK$149.4 million and HK$266.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
approximately HK$1,088.1 million, HK$156.4 million and HK$191.3
million), respectively.

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$424.8 million, representing a 57.6% increase as
compared with approximately HK$269.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2021. The gross profit margin of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 increased 4.9 percentage points to
23.7% (for the year ended 31 December 2021: 18.8%). Profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$75.5 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2021: loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$93.5 million).

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFERE

BRI -

RAZBRERABEBEERER AR (KA
ADEEWNBAR (KBIAEE]) - MA
BEAEEHE-_ZS-_—F+=-_A=+—H
IEFEZEERFEES -

— = — —

TECFmAtkE - REEBERERE
B EE #2019 AR B FH(COVID-19)K
WIT BRSEZTRAEARBERES
FEBZR A BEE 2 IKCOVID-19K 7
TREE - SBE P HER R RS -
CETHRIREREZWMES  REEXZE
PG R BB - BIRE A B Rk 4A 4T B
DHEREE  2RSHHOBEBREKREAXG
BEBEERE  —E- _ERBKRE LS
900E & AKX BE B AE KRITRIKEZ
63% °

PEEZEERIRBXEZRTER  ANEE 2 EE
EENBEHREA - BE-_T-_—_F+_-A
—t+—HILEFE AEEGESERBKRAY
1,793.0888 0 8HBE-_TE-—F+=
A=+—HBIEFE2#1,435888 %L L
F249%  EHBEHERE SERR
REm((EERRREE]) EBAREREZ
EBREERARESRBEE TS -_—_F+_7
—t+—HIEFESMEL1,376.98 88T
14948 &8 T k266. 78 BB L (HEZ
T+ _A=1+—HILFE  41,088.18H
BB 15648 BB T RIN3EEET) °

HE-_ T -__F+-_A=+—HIEFE XK
SEZEFNNI248BEE T BHE_Z
%+ A=+—HLFEZ24269.6H
BT MS76% BHEZT-_—_F+=A
=+—HLEFE TEEEMNELML9
EEPHE23.7% (BHE_T=_—F+= A
=+—HIEFE :188%) HE_-_T - —
F+-A=+—HLEFE XR2RHEEBA
EhaEMB7ss5E8B T (HESE-—F
+—A=1+—BLEE : KNAREE AR
EEH935EEBIT) °
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FREHSE (&)

The Group believes that the health concept has become increasingly
popular after the COVID-19 pandemic, and the public has paid more
attention to health and hygiene, which has left the demand for
health care and hygienic products. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group produced high-quality disposable
infection control products such as medical equipment covers, as well
as our health care and hygienic products to meet the growing market
demand. The Group will also adopt advanced technology to research
as appropriate and develop and upgrade health care and hygienic
products to enrich its product range, and further develops sales
channels to promote its products to commercial and non-commercial
enterprises, thereby strengthening its brand awareness. In addition,
the Group continued to promote the construction of supply chain in
the Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia”) to further grasp the
cost-effectiveness of low tariffs and expand its business in Southeast
Asia.

Looking ahead, economic activities will gradually return to normal,
and the global tourism industry will recover. As a result, the Group's
business is expected to further maintain its growth driver. The
performance of the Group’s hospitality supplies business and OS&E
business in China are expected to improve on the back of a rebound
in the domestic economy and tourism following the full opening of
China’s immigration control.

The pace of recovery in the global tourism industry still depends on
global economic, public health and geopolitical factors, and the
Group remains cautiously optimistic about the industry outlook. The
Group will closely monitor the trend of the industry and adjust its
business strategy in a timely manner to deploy the market. To cope
with the challenging business environment, the Group will leverage
on its own strengths and implement a cost-effective and efficient
operation model by making use of existing production bases in
different locations to increase productivity. In addition, the Group
will actively optimise its product mix to capture market opportunities,
promote diversified development and enhance its competitiveness
and business performance.

On behalf of the Board, | am sincerely grateful to all Shareholders
and business partners for their continuous support and trust. | also
highly appreciate to our management and employees for their loyalty,
professionalism and contributions, and to work with the Group in a
challenging environment.

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Key Financial Highlights

Set out below are the consolidated key financial highlights of the
Group:

EEES®E DN

Bt ¥ R

TEMBRE
UNTEINAEE L GEERHHRHE

Year ended 31 December

BEE+t-A=1+-HLEE

2022 2021 Change
—E-CF —E-—F g

HK$ million HK$ million %

HEBET HEATL Bo

Revenue A 1,793.0 1,435.8 24.9%

Gross Profit 5&*” 424.8 269.6 57.6%

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of RREEE AESG

the Company wF(E18) 75.5 (93.5) N/ATNE R
Basic earnings/(loss) per Share attributable RRBHEEANEEER

to owners of the Company (HK cents) BEAREF,(EBB) C&FL) 10.4 (12.8) N/A i
Diluted earnings/(loss) per Share attributable RREHEB AELER

to owners of the Company (HK cents) BEERN,(B8) CEL) 10.4 (12.8) N/AT 38 F

Dividend per Share (HK cents) SRS CEL) 4.0 - N/A i F

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total revenue of the
Group recorded an increase of 24.9% to approximately HK$1,793.0
million (for the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately
HK$1,435.8 million). For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
revenues of the hospitality supplies business, OS&E business and
health care and hygienic products business were approximately
HK$1,376.9 million, HK$149.4 million and HK$266.7 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2021: approximately HK$1,088.1 million,
HK$156.4 million and HK$191.3 million) respectively, which
represented 76.8%, 8.3% and 14.9% (for the year ended 31
December 2021: 75.8%, 10.9% and 13.3%) of the Group's total
revenue respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2022
increased 57.6% to approximately HK$424.8 million, compared with
approximately HK$269.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. Gross profit margin increased 4.9 percentage points to 23.7%
from 18.8% as compared with the prior year, as a results of various
measures taken by the Group, including tightening cost control and
more effort in sales of products with higher profit margins.

A

BE-_E_—_F+_A=+—HIFEE XK
EEBARAREIZIE249%E41,793.08 8
BL(EHEZTE—4F+ZA=+—HILHF
B #1,4358E 88 L) BHE-ST =
+T-A=+-—HLEFE BEEERES -
EERAMMREESEREFREERTEAD
=S ADRIA1,376. 98 BB T~ 149.4
BEALK26.7TBEBAL(HEZZ—F
+ - A=+—BIFE:41,088.18E8%
T 156 4EBETRIVIEESET) 0 »
B A= E B WA H76.8%  8.3%N14.9%
(2T F+-_A=+—"HLEFE:
75.8% ~ 10.9% % 13.3%) °

EMREFER

BE-_E-_—F+-A=+—HILFEE &K
EENENNIRAEERE T BHE_Z
T F+-_A=Zt+—HIFELH2696FE
FETLIEIN57.6% © EANEE IR Z I (£
5 0 9% B AR £ 5l K hn oK = A R E S A9 8
B) EMERHEF 218.8%E MN4.9EH 7
BhE23.7% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBSwmR DM (&)

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$75.5 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2021: loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$93.5 million).

Earnings/(loss) per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per Share attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 were HK10.4 cents
and HK10.4 cents (for the year ended 31 December 2021: basic and
diluted loss per Share were HK12.8 cents and HK12.8 cents)
respectively.

Final dividend

The Board had resolved to propose a final dividend of HK3.0 cents
per Share for the year ended 31 December 2022 (for the year ended
31 December 2021: nil). A sum of the interim and final dividends for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was expected to be HK4.0 cents
per Share (for the year ended 31 December 2021: nil). The proposed
final dividend is subject to approval at the annual general meeting to
be held on 24 May 2023 ("AGM").

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury management
policy and actively manages its liquidity position with standby
banking facilities to cope with daily operation and potential capital
demands for future development.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$305.4 million (as at 31 December
2021: approximately HK$251.2 million).

Net assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net assets was approximately
HK$1,131.5 million (as at 31 December 2021: approximately
HK$1,094.4 million).

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022
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Borrowings

The borrowing structure, maturity profile and currency denomination

of the Group's borrowings are as follows:

Borrowing structure:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEE W R D ()

e
BE

BT :
EE&ZE -

As at 31 December

AEBRBEZEEERE MR RE%E

R+=A=t—-H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—fF
Effective interest rate ~ HKS$ million Effective interest rate HK$ million
BRFA= BE#BT B A = BEAT
Secured bank borrowings Floating rate of 4.5 Floating rate of 4.3
with repayable on 1.7% per annum over 1.7% per annum over
demand clauses 1-month Hong Kong Inter-bank 1-month HIBOR
Offered Rate (“HIBOR")
BEREREEGK —EABBRITEXEFEER —EARAEARITRAEREE
ZEEARITEER ([ERBITRXFEE] MEF R 7% 2 FEF =
MEFE1.7% 2 ZEF =
Floating rate of the higher of 6.3  Floating rate of the higher of 8.4
1.7% per annum over 1.7% per annum over
1-month HIBOR or 1-month HIBOR or
the cost to the bank of the cost to the bank of
funding the borrowing funding the borrowing
—EAEBRITEAXRKFER —ERAEERITRZEREE
nE R £1.7% INE R E1.7%
RMTBARER L ZRSE FR|ITBNRERA B BE
ZEBAE 22 %
Floating rates ranging from 69.8 Floating rates ranging from 85.2
1.67%-1.82% per annum over 1.5%-1.7% per annum over
1-month Term Secured 1-month London Inter-bank
Overnight Financing Rate Offered Rate (“LIBOR")
—EARRBEREEHRTIE —EARARBERITRIERFEE
mAF EFE1.67%21.82% UGES SSIEES -2
ZFBRE M FEFEIS%ZE.7%
ZFEHE
Floating rate of the higher of 27.8  Floating rate of the higher of 40.3
1.7% per annum over 1.7% per annum over
1-month LIBOR or 1-month LIBOR or
the cost to the bank of the cost to the bank of
funding the borrowing funding the borrowing
—EARBARTERFEE —EAfRBEBITREFEE
o R =1.7% IEME7%
RETBRIRERETZRSE FRITBNRENE B SE
ZREAE ZF B X
Secured bank borrowings Fixed rate of - Fixed rates ranging from 0.3
without repayable on 1.4% per annum 1.4%-2.4% per annum
demand clauses
3 42 B SRR R RN FFE1.4% NFEFIE1.4%E2.4%
ZEEARITEE ZE R = Z Bl E | &
Secured other borrowings Fixed rates ranging from 2.4 Fixed rates ranging from 2.8
without repayable on 0.36%-1.38% per annum 0.36%-1.26% per annum
demand clauses
3 48 42 B SR AR R 6N N FFEHE0.36%£1.38% NFEFE0.36%F1.26%
ZEEREMEE 2 B E R = 2 [EITE | &
110.8 1413
BIEERIERER AR o T _FFR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EERBS®mR DM (&)

Maturity profile:

The repayment terms of the borrowings without taking into
consideration the effect of repayable on demand clauses are as
follows:

BIRFER -

Y EFRREREEGFOZET @ 8
RUEFKANT

As at 31 December

R+t=A=+—H
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEBTT
Within 1 year M1ER 61.4 64.2
Between 1 and 2 years 122F 2 fH 23.1 30.8
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 7 A 25.1 44.7
Over 5 years 5+ 1.2 1.6
110.8 141.3
Currency denomination: B e -
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEAETT BEBTT
Hong Kong dollars BT 10.8 12.8
United States dollars ETT 97.5 125.4
Japanese Yen H 2.5 3.1
110.8 141.3

Details of the borrowings are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Charges on Group assets

Except for bank and other borrowings of approximately HK$2.5
million as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately HK$3.1 million), which was secured by personal
guarantee of a non-controlling interest of the Group, other bank
borrowings were secured by certain property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and a bank deposit of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEAWR DN (&)
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings HtE Sy BEREEZEEENT ¢
are as follows:
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEAT
Property, plant and equipment % - RE K &iE 19.0 21.2
Right-of-use assets FREEE 27.9 29.1
Bank deposit IRITIER 11.7 11.7
58.6 62.0
Gearing ratio BEEBEHZE

The gearing ratio was calculated as net debt (i.e. borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents) divided by total equity. The gearing ratio
was not applicable to the Group as at 31 December 2022 and as at
31 December 2021.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Group currently does not deploy a foreign currency hedging policy.

The Group primarily sourced its raw materials in the PRC. The related
currency exposure with respect to RMB is managed through
increasing revenue denominated in the same currency.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

Details of the capital commitments as at 31 December 2022 and as
at 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group has no material contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021: same).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back at 2022, under the influence of US interest rate hikes
and geopolitical conflicts, the global economy faced multiple
pressures such as elevated inflation, rising raw material prices and
supply chain disruptions, which slowed the pace of global recovery.
However, as the global COVID-19 pandemic eases, countries around
the world are gradually opening up, bringing a recovery in demand
for travel, tourism and aviation industries, and the Group’s business
has also been driven. The Group’s overall performance recorded a
steady growth as compared to the same period last year.

BERABLENRFER (ED%%?Dﬁ?fﬁi
rReEEBEB)BUEAESAE - R -F
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o
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B e
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e 2 % R T 3B 8 A0 AR R S R (2
Y TSR <
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBSwmR DM (&)

Hospitality Supplies Business

According to the recent data released by the United Nations World
Tourism Organization, more than 900 million tourists travelled
internationally in 2022 — double the number recorded in 2021 though
still 63% of pre-pandemic levels. According to the data, European
tourism reached nearly 80% of pre-pandemic levels, while in Asia is
relatively slow due to stronger pandemic-related restrictions which
have started to be removed only in recent months. Benefiting from the
lifting of entry restrictions by various countries, the recovery of global
travel demand, and the gradual improvement in international tourism,
the demand for hospitality supplies products has risen.

Revenue from the Group’s hospitality supplies business for the year
ended 31 December 2022 increased 26.5% to approximately
HK$1,376.9 million (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
approximately HK$1,088.1 million), which contributed 76.8% (for the
year ended 31 December 2021: 75.8%) to the Group's total revenue.
Gross profit from the hospitality supplies business increased 56.7% to
approximately HK$324.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
(for the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately HK$207.2
million). The segment’s gross profit margin increased 4.6 percentage
points to 23.6% for the year ended 31 December 2022 (for the year
ended 31 December 2021: 19.0%).

In early 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic resumed in China, and the
further tightening of pandemic prevention measures have affected the
normal operation of the tourism market. According to the “China’s
Tourism Performance: Review & Forecast (2022~2023)" (Blue Book of
China’s Tourism Economy No.15) issued by the China Tourism
Academy, the estimated domestic tourists and tourism revenue in the
PRC were 2.53 billion person-times and RMB2.04 trillion respectively in
2022, which decreased 22.1% and 30% as compared with 2021 and
recovered to 42.1% and 30.7% respectively of pre-pandemic levels.
Hospitality supplies business revenue for the year ended 31 December
2022 from the PRC was approximately HK$350.4 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2021: approximately HK$503.7 million),
representing 25.4% (for the year ended 31 December 2021: 46.3%)
of the total hospitality supplies business segment revenue.

Hospitality supplies business revenues for the year ended 31 December
2022 from Hong Kong, the North America, Europe, other Asia Pacific
regions and Australia were approximately HK$175.9 million, HK$183.3
million, HK$251.0 million, HK$262.2 million and HK$151.0 million (for
the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately HK$150.4 million,
HK$160.0 million, HK$97.3 million, HK$144.5 million and HK$30.4
million) respectively, accounted for 12.8%, 13.3%, 18.2%, 19.0% and
11.0% (for the year ended 31 December 2021: 13.8%, 14.7%, 8.9%,
13.3% and 2.8%) of the total hospitality supplies business segment
revenue respectively. The increase in hospitality supplies business
revenues from these regions was driven by the increase in demand for
the Group’s hospitality supplies products as a result of the lifting of
entry restrictions and that the recovery of travel demand to these
regions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Hospitality supplies business segment revenue by
geographical location

0.3% 13.3%
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® The PRC H[E
® Hong Kong #Hi&
North America 1t

® Europe &M
Operating Supplies and Equipment Business

In the recently released China Construction Pipeline Trend Report
from Lodging Econometrics, analysts reported that the country’s total
hotel construction pipeline, at the close of the fourth quarter of
2022, stands at 3,581 projects/675,074 rooms. Throughout 2022,
there were 469 new hotels that opened in China. Revenue from the
Group's OS&E business was approximately HK$149.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, representing a decrease of 4.5% as
compared with approximately HK$156.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, and representing 8.3% (for the year ended 31
December 2021: 10.9%) of the Group's total revenue. Gross profit
from the OS&E business decreased by 3.0% to approximately
HK$36.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (for the year
ended 31 December 2021: approximately HK$37.2 million). The
segment’s gross profit margin increased 0.4 percentage point to
24.2% for the year ended 31 December 2022 (for the year ended 31
December 2021: 23.8%).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, OS&E business revenues from
the PRC and other markets were approximately HK$103.2 million and
HK$46.2 million (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
approximately HK$125.0 million and HK$31.4 million) respectively,
representing 69.1% and 30.9% (for the year ended 31 December
2021: 79.9% and 20.1%) of the total OS&E business segment
revenue respectively.

® Australia B
©® Other Asia Pacific regions H{thZs Kith =

©® Others Hfth
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Operating supplies and equipment business
segment revenue by geographical location

30.9%

69.1%

2022
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® The PRC H1[E]

The Group will continue to explore the potential demand for OS&E
markets, further expand the scale of replenishment business, and
enhance long-term customer stickiness with rich product categories
and high-quality services, while striving to develop more high-value
customers to establish long-term cooperative relationships, so as to
support sustainable business development.

Health Care and Hygienic Products Business

The Group continues to produce high-quality health care and
hygienic products and disposable infection control products such as
the medical equipment covers to meet different demands in the
market. With the arrival of the post-pandemic era and the continuous
growth of the global ageing population, the public’s awareness of
personal health care has greatly increased, and the demand for
health care and hygienic products has been increasing. There is still
room for growth in the health care and hygienic products market and
the scale of the industry will continue to expand. Therefore, the
Group seized market opportunities and continued to provide
abundant and high-quality health care products to the market,
aiming for steady growth in revenue.

Revenue from the Group’s health care and hygienic products business
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately HK$266.7
million (for the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately
HK$191.3 million), which contributed 14.9% (for the year ended 31
December 2021: 13.3%) to the Group's total revenue. Gross profit
from the health care and hygienic products business was
approximately HK$64.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 (for the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately HK$25.0
million). The segment’s gross profit margin increased 10.9
percentage points to 24.0% for the year ended 31 December 2022
(for the year ended 31 December 2021: 13.1%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In early 2022, the fifth wave of COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong
has led to an increase in sales of related hygienic products. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of health care and
hygienic products business from Hong Kong was approximately
HK$77.7 million (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
approximately HK$51.9 million), representing 29.1% (for the year
ended 31 December 2021: 27.1%) of the total health care and
hygienic products business segment revenue. The Group also
continued to drive the health care and hygienic products business
development in other regions. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the revenues of health care and hygienic products business
from the North America and other markets were approximately
HK$154.7 million and HK$34.3 million (for the year ended 31
December 2021: approximately HK$104.8 million and HK$34.6
million) respectively, representing 58.0% and 12.9% (for the year
ended 31 December 2021: 54.8% and 18.1%) of the total health
care and hygienic products business segment revenue respectively.

Health care and hygienic products business segment
revenue by geographical location

58.0%

2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBSwmR DM (&)

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

The Group is aiming to become an excellent international corporate
brand specialising in hospitality supplies and personal care products,
create maximum value for stakeholders, and support ecology for
sustainable development.

Expected recovery in global tourism growth

Currently there are still many risks around the world that slowing the
pace of economic recovery. As countries around the world loosen
their anti-pandemic policies, economic activities and the personnel
flow are recovering. All these factors are favorable for the accelerated
recovery of the global tourism industry. Looking into 2023, as the
pandemic gradually dissipates, the global economic situation will
improve, which will promote the growing well in development of the
travel, tourism and aviation industries. The Economist Intelligence
Unit expected pent-up demand for travel to drive growth of 30% in
international tourism arrivals in 2023, taking them to 1.6 billion.
Benefiting from the recovery of global tourism industry, the
hospitality supplies and OS&E businesses of the Group will gradually
improve and is expected to resume continuous growth.

Recovery in tourism industry in the PRC

China removed all pandemic prevention policies by the end of 2022
and resumed tourist arrivals in an orderly manner, China’s tourism
industry gradually started to recover. According to the “Review &
Forecast (2022~2023)" (Blue Book of China’s Tourism Economy
No.15) issued by the China Tourism Academy, the expected domestic
tourists and tourism revenue in 2023 will recover to 70-75% of
pre-pandemic levels, and the person-times of inbound and outbound
tourists will return to 30-40% of pre-pandemic. The re-opening of
the China market has stimulated a strong recovery in tourism. The
Group is optimistic about the prospects of China’s tourism industry
and the hospitality supplies and OS&E businesses in the PRC are
expected to drive.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Development in Southeast Asia market

With the easing of supply chain pressure, the lifting of travel
restrictions and the re-opening of borders by countries, the tourism
growth in Southeast Asia will be released, which will also provide
strong support for economic growth of countries in Southeast Asia.
According to the recent article published by STR, the occupancy level
in Southeast Asia was 53.8% in 2022, was 15.6 percentage points
ahead of 2021. The Group is optimistic about the future potential
development of the Southeast Asian market and intends to continue
to expand the industry chain to Southeast Asia. The Group will
continue to utilise the production lines for liquid products in the
Cambodia, which is expected to increase the production volume of
hospitality supplies products in Southeast Asia. Meanwhile, the
Group will actively expand its product categories with leveraging its
advantages in product portfolio diversification and regional cost in
order to continuously explore the potential of the Southeast Asia
market. The Group will actively captures for cooperation with local
suppliers to further consolidate and expand its business scope in the
Southeast Asia region.

Promotion of health care and hygienic products
business

With the arrival of the post-pandemic era, the rich development
opportunities in the health care and hygienic products market have
gradually emerged. The Group will closely follow the market
development trend and continue to expand the business scope of
health care and hygienic products to meet the changing market
demand, and enhance the penetration rate of the Group’s brands
and products. The Group is still optimistic about the future prospects
of the health care products industry and will continue to invest
capital, as appropriate, to enhance product research and
development capabilities. In the future, the Group will leverage on its
technological advantages and brand reputation to continuously
expand its target user base to fully cover individual consumers,
commercial institutions, hospitals etc., and adjust online and offline
marketing strategies in a timely manner to enhance operational
efficiency and promote more cooperation and business development
opportunities.

Implementing the green concept of development
and production

The importance of measuring environment, social and governance
("ESG") performance has become increasingly prominent. In order to
meet the transformation needs of green development in the hotel
industry, the Group will continue to adopt green strategies to
promote the sustainable development of the industry chain and
invest resources to develop green hotel supplies products with
environmentally-friendly materials. The Group will also flexibly
implement the concept of environmental protection, and actively
fulfill the responsibility of energy conservation and emission reduction
to promote carbon footprint management and further improve the
Group’s ESG performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBSwmR DM (&)

Profitability and core competitiveness enhancement

The Group’s core operating metrics are expected to improve as the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic fades. As a recovery in the tourism
industry of various countries, the rapid growth of tourism demand
has reduced customers’ price sensitivity, and also provided the Group
with more room for better pricing. The Group will improve the
resource utilisation rate of the production base in Cambodia, while
strengthening production cost control and the procurement of raw
material alternatives, so as to strive to improve production efficiency
and the profit margin of the Group. The Group will make full use of
its own products and cost advantages to enhance its core
competitiveness and create higher value for customers. Meanwhile,
the Group also continues to optimise the strategies related to
working capital management, business development and cost control
to release the Group’s operating momentum and build a solid
long-term development foundation for the Group.

Capture market recovery opportunities

The Group will flexibly respond to market changes, make full use of
cost and product advantages, and further strengthen the industrial
chain to promote business expansion to different regions and fields,
and consolidate market position. Meanwhile, the Group will continue
to optimise its product portfolio and customer services, and actively
develop more high-value customers on the basis of stable long-term
user cooperation, so as to improve its competitiveness and market
share, and enhance the Group’s development resilience. The Group
will seize the development opportunities of market recovery, improve
corporate quality and efficiency, and strive for the sustainable
development of operating performance.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group was approximately
4,700 as at 31 December 2022. The employee benefit expenses
including Directors’ emoluments were approximately HK$424.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The remuneration of
employees (including the Directors and senior management) of the
Group are generally structured by reference to market terms and
individual merits, which is reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
also provides various other benefits to designated staff, including
discretionary bonus, social insurance or medical insurance, share
option scheme, share award scheme, continuing education and
training programmes. The Group also launched key performance
indicators assessment scheme and commendation annual award
scheme to boost individual performance and operational efficiency.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEABZEEHR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHING Chi Fai, aged 61, is an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company since 2007. He is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, the Executive Committee and the Investment Committee
of the Company, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai is also a founder of the Group. He has been
responsible for sales and marketing, production of the products and
the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business
strategies of the Group. Mr. CHING Chi Fai has over 30 years of
experience in the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Keung
is a brother of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is the
son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

Mr. CHING Chi Keung, aged 58, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Keung joined the Group with the founders. He has
been responsible for human resources and administrative matters of
the Group. Mr. CHING Chi Keung has over 30 years of experience in
the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Fai is a brother of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is a nephew of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

Mr. LIU Zigang, aged 57, is an Executive Director of the Company
since 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. LIU has been responsible for sales and marketing since he joined
the Group in May 1995. He oversees sales in the Greater China
Region. Mr. LIU has over 20 years of experience in the hospitality
supplies industry. He obtained a Master degree of Business
Administration in Centenary College of New Jersey, USA in 2011.
Mr. LIU also holds a diploma from Shenzhen University, the PRC and
completed a course on International Business Management of
Tsinghua University organised by Yangtze Delta Region Institute of
Tsinghua University, the PRC.

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, aged 41, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2014. He is a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company, a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and
the business development director of the Group. He joined the Group
since 2006 to assist in production and has been actively involved in
both the business and product development of the Group. Mr. CHING
Tsun Wah has extensive experience in the hospitality supplies
industry. He oversees sales in Southeast Asia and overseas markets.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah obtained the Young Industrialist Awards of
Hong Kong by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2020. He
graduated in Seneca College Toronto of Canada in marketing
administration in 2003. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is the son of
Mr. CHING Chi Fai and a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENREREBABZBEFE (

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung, aged 50, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2014. He is the Chief Financial Officer, the Company
Secretary, a member of the Executive Committee and the Investment
Committee of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. KEUNG joined the Group in July 2010 and he is
responsible for finance and accounting matters. He has over 20 years
of experience in accounting and financial management. He holds a
Bachelor degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching, aged 55, is a Non-Executive Director of the
Company since 2015. She is a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Ms. CHAN joined the Group in 1995 and was responsible
for sales and marketing and oversaw export sales to overseas
markets. She was an Executive Director of the Company from 2007
to 2015. Ms. CHAN has over 30 years of experience in the hospitality
supplies industry. Prior to joining the Group, she worked in several
companies engaged in hospitality supplies business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan, aged 68, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2007. He is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. HUNG has over 30 years of
senior management experience in managing hotel operations and
hotel investments. He was a deputy managing director in 1992 and
an executive director from July 1997 to January 2001 of Top Glory
International Holdings Limited (“Top Glory”), a former Hong Kong
listed company which was privatised in August 2003. During the
period with Top Glory, Mr. HUNG assisted Top Glory to develop and
manage hotels/resorts. In 2005, Mr. HUNG started a hotel
development consultancy service to work with various hotel
developers and prestigious hotel chains on design and project
management.

Mr. NG Bo Kwong, aged 66, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 13 June 2013. He was a
Non-Executive Director of the Company from 9 July 2007 to 31
December 2012. He is a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. NG has over 30 years
of management experience in different industries (including the
hospitality supplies industry). He is the chairman of the International
Quality Service Management Promotion Association and a full
member of the Hong Kong Management Association. He had assisted
a number of medium to large sized enterprises in formulating
company development strategies and establishing management
systems in the areas of sales and marketing, human resources and
production management. Mr. NG is also a guest lecturer of Master of
Business Administration programs and senior executive development
programs of several universities. He had been a director of a number
of non-listed companies and is currently a director of Advance
Management Consultants Limited and Guangzhou Advance Cultural
Events Limited. He received a Master degree of Business
Administration from the University of East Asia and a Doctor degree
of Philosophy in Business Administration from Tarlac State University.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

ZEBELE SO BT —NFERE
AZHITER - BRARARIZEREUD
NEIWE HITEEGRIREZE X

AARETHBAT I BE - 254N -T
—ZTELtANMBAEEVYEEMB LGS
%o MBEBE0F S RTBERLR - &
REEBREBEIRERT 228184
WABBSGHMAS RABSFT AREEAD
NEZEFREEH -

\I]]]D 1]11} 4}

H% P

FHTES

PREEBEZ+ - 5558 B —F— ﬁiiﬁ$
AZIFMTEE - WRARA—HHEBL
Z%$°ﬁﬁi%—ﬂﬂﬁimmﬁgli
BEHERMSHEEIE UREEHOK
EE2BIME - BR _TTLFE_FT—H
FEREEARAZHTESR - RELINEBEE
Tﬁmﬁ%%ﬁ@m$§@°EME$%@
B ERBRNE RS RERREHRF -

BAYFHTES

ABWHAKE 685 A -_FTTLFR/ARTA
ZEUFRATEZ -BRARBHFMEE
GIRNELZEENE A KAEREES
BROBERE EERBIFHNERE R
@%°ﬁﬂ NNW_FRBINBEEREESR

T(FHH%?’HJJ) (AMMEABLMRA - ER—
ZE=F)\ALAL) 2AIETEEERR
_ﬂﬂtgtﬂi—zg F—ARZRT
ZHITES - EBEFEBIRE - AL

BRIERREREE EBRN - R-2TH
FoALERBBEEERBRRYE  R&RA
RIEBER T HESEEEERE RAAE
[EEHEBEGE -

iﬁ%%iy%ﬁ'a:z—ziﬁﬁ+z
Eiﬁ$ﬁ72ﬁ¢#ﬂﬁ%$°ﬁ@
E+E+AABE-E——-FE+=-A= +—
S N/N 7Z#ﬂﬂ§$°ﬁﬁ$ EE1A
ZESRFMEEGKE - REERTRT
¥ (PRBEHERTE) EEAIFEE
K- ARKEBEERGEERES LT
E ITAEEEREH %T@mmﬁééoﬁ
%%yﬁ$ﬁﬂﬁ Ih¥ESERRIERE
R ERTMISHE  ANBRREE
Aﬁ%%mki%ﬁﬂf i%iﬁ%&%
MAEIHEEELIRERSREEASE
m#ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁoﬁgﬁﬁ%ﬁ#tﬁﬂ
ANES BANEHEEBEMAR AR R
EMYEH XL EHNREERATNESE -
HRFRAERDABTITHERBETIEMLAAER
VABIHEREEB LB -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson, aged 46, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2016. He is a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He graduated with Bachelor degree of
Commerce in the University of New South Wales, Australia in July
2000. Mr. SUN has been the managing director of Kin Hip Metal &
Plastic Factory, Limited and KINOX Trading Limited since 2006. He
has been dedicated to explore and position the products of KINOX,
an international quality manufacturer of fashionable cookware,
houseware and electrical appliances in household and catering
industries, in emerging and global markets. Mr. SUN is also the
honorary and founding president of Youth Executive Council of
Federation of Hong Kong Industries (“FHKI"), the chairman of The
Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association Limited, the founding
vice chairman and secretary general of Hong Kong 020 E-Commerce
Federation, the vice chairman of Hong Kong Q-Mark Council, the
chairman of The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association and a committee
member of FHKI Pearl River Delta Council. Mr. SUN dedicates his
effort on social responsibilities and practices active roles in different
public services in both Hong Kong and China.

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit, aged 45, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director since 2021. He is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Investment Committee of the
Company. Mr. KWONG obtained a Bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accountancy in the City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. KWONG has over 20 years of experience in accounting and
financial management. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. KWONG is currently the Chief
Financial Officer of 9LIVES Group. He was the vice president of
finance and management information system of Wise Ally
International Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the group
financial controller of Defond Holdings (H.K.) Co. Limited and the
group financial controller of Valuetronics Holdings Limited, the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange
Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHAN Yick Ning, aged 60, is the research and development
director of the Group and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. CHAN is responsible for overseeing various aspects of
our chemical production such as chemical production quality control,
research and development of product formulations, the operations of
the chemical and microbiological laboratory, the performance of the
senior chemists and technicians, quality control and research and
development. Ms. CHAN is also the vice chairman of Compliance
Committee of the Group to provide the technical expertise in vary
aspects to ensure the regulatory compliance and product safety.
Ms. CHAN joined the Group in 2005 and has over 30 years of
experience in cosmetics production and laboratory operation.
Ms. CHAN was awarded a Master of Science degree from University
of Warwick in 2013 and a Diploma in Management Studies jointly by
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Hong Kong Management
Association in 1992. Ms. CHAN is also a founder member and the
President of Hong Kong Society of Cosmetic Chemists, which is an
affiliate member of The International Federation of Societies of
Cosmetic Chemists.

The five Executive Directors whose biographical details are included
in the sub-section headed “Executive Directors” above are also
regarded as the senior management of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited are pleased
to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of hospitality
supplies products, trading of operating supplies and equipment and
manufacturing and trading of health care and hygienic products.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Group are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 156 of this
annual report.

Dividend policy

The Board intend to strike a balance between maintaining sufficient
capital to grow the business of the Group and rewarding the
Shareholders. The declaration and payment of any dividends by the
Company would be subject to the Board’s decision and any final
dividend for a financial year of the Company would be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval. The decision to declare or to pay any
dividend, and the amount of any dividends, will depend on the
Group’s earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
availability, and any other factors the Board may consider relevant.
These factors and the payment of dividends is at the discretion of the
Board and the Board reserves the right to change its plan on any
future payment of dividends. The payment of dividend is also subject
to any restrictions under the laws of Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company.

Dividend

An interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share for the six months
ended 30 June 2022, amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$7,343,000 was paid on 3 October 2022, including dividend paid
to Shares held for the share award scheme of the Company (the
“Share Award Scheme”).
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The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2022. Subject to the
approval by the Shareholders at the AGM, the final dividend will be
paid on or around Friday, 9 June 2023 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday,
2 June 2023.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote
at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 19 May 2023 to Wednesday, 24 May 2023 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all documents
in respect of transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 18 May 2023.

For ascertaining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 31 May 2023 to Friday, 2 June 2023 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all documents in
respect of transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 30 May 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 is set out in “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 07 to 08 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 09 to 20 of this
annual report.

Analysis of financial key performance indicators

The financial key performance indicators and analysis of the Group's
business are set out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 05
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 09 to 20 of
this annual report.
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Risks pertaining to the reliance on direct sales customers
and distributors for the sale of products

Our hospitality supplies products, operating supplies and equipment
and health care and hygienic products are sold to our customers by
direct sales, including hotels and airline operators, or to distributors,
or to other end-users. There is no assurance that such customers will
continue to purchase or maintain their purchase volumes of our
products in the future. In addition, there is no assurance that we will
be able to maintain business relationship with our customers. In the
event that any of our customers ceases to purchase from us or
reduces the purchase volume of orders placed with us and we are
unable to obtain replacement orders, our business and profitability
may be adversely affected.

Risks pertaining to price fluctuations of raw materials

The principal raw materials used in our production may be subject to
substantial price volatility and periodic shortages caused by external
conditions, such as fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign
exchange rates. There is no guarantee that the costs of raw materials
will be stable in the future. To the extent that we are unable to cover
any increased costs of raw materials by either reduction in other
production costs or increase of our product prices, our profits will be
adversely affected.

Operation risks

The operation of the Group is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to the respective markets. Default on the part of the
Group's customers, distributors, suppliers and business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and systems or
other external factors may have various levels of negative impact on
the results of operations. Additionally, accidents may happen despite
systems and policies set up for their prevention, which may lead to
finance loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

Market risks

The Group is also subject to market risks such as currency
fluctuations, volatility of interest rates, credit risks and liquidity risks
in the normal course of the Group’s businesses. Particulars of
financial risk management of the Group are set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Risks relating to compliance with laws and regulations

We are required to comply with all relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the governments of the respective jurisdictions.
There is no assurance that the existing laws and regulations will not
be changed or additional or more stringent requirement will not be
imposed, compliance with which may cause us to incur significant
expenditure. Moreover, if we fail to comply with the present or
future laws and regulations, we may be required to pay substantial
fines, suspend production or cease operations. Consequently, our
financial condition, business and reputation may be adversely
affected.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group strives to enhance governance, promote employee
benefits and development, protect the environment and fulfill social
responsibilities in order to achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the principle of sustainable development
and fulfill corporate social responsibilities (“CSR") by applying
“commercial morality, the kindness towards people and protecting
environment”. We comply with the laws and respect commercial
morality. We manage our operation based on the legal, compliant
and reasonable basics. We respect human rights, care for public
welfare. We value integrity and achieve win-win situation by
cooperation. We follow our philosophy of respecting morality and
giving back to society. We value resources and promote
environmental protection. Relying on scientific improvements to
reduce impacts on the environment, while we are seeking for
environmental technologies to maintain sustainable development.

The Group believes that CSR is not just about philanthropy, but also
a responsibility towards the community and being able to provide a
good platform to contribute in any way that is meaningful, fulfilling
and sustainable. CSR will remain a prominent matter in the Group'’s
agenda, and environmental management is always an integral part of
the Group’s business planning and daily operations.

Details of environmental policies and performance of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2022", which was prepared in
accordance with “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide"” contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and had been published on the
HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the “Investors Relations”
section of the Company’s website (www.mingfaigroup.com).
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Key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.

The Group maintains working relationships with suppliers to meet
our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. Our
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group's requirements and standards are also well-communicated
to suppliers.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels to understand customers’ trends and
needs and regularly analyses on customers’ feedback. The Group also
conducts comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only quality
products and services are offered to the customers.

THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets, equity and liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set
out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 05 of this annual
report.

SHARES AND DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Group did not issue any Shares and debentures during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 69 and
Notes 18 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,019,202,000.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, in which the
Company incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company, except that the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme purchased a total of 5,000,000 Shares at a total
consideration of approximately HK$2.1 million on the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the
Share Award Scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan
Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit

In accordance with article 138 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. CHING Chi Fai, KEUNG Kwok Hung, HUNG Kam
Hung Allan and NG Bo Kwong will retire at the AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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Confirmation of independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors has any
interest in any business apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than Directors’ service contracts and employment contracts
with the Group's senior management in full-time employment, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended
31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.
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Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is
acquitted. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

New VIE Structure

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 22 October
2017 and 19 January 2018 (the “Announcements”), due to
applicable laws and regulatory prohibitions on owning land and real
properties in Cambodia by foreign ownership, the Group has in place
a series of contractual arrangements to establish the VIE Structure
with the Local Partner (i.e. an assistant solicitor of the Cambodia
legal adviser to the Company, who is a Cambodian citizen and an
independent third party) that are designed to allow the Company to
exercise control over the operations of the Landholding Company (i.e.
a company incorporated under the laws of Cambodia and owned as
to 49% by Ming Fai Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and 51% by the Local Partner to hold the Land and
Properties) and enjoy the economic benefits in the Land and
Properties. Unless otherwise specified, capitalised terms used herein
shall have the same meanings as defined in the Announcements.

On 16 June 2021, the relevant parties entered into the following
documents to change one of the registered shareholders of the
Landholding Company from the Local Partner to Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah, an Executive Director (the “Change of Local Partner”):-

(1) the Termination Agreement, pursuant to which Ming Fai
Holdings Limited and the Local Partner agreed the termination
of the aforesaid contractual arrangements between the Group
and the Local Partner;

(2) the Transfer Documents, pursuant to which the Local Partner
transferred 51% of equity interests of the Landholding
Company to Mr. CHING Tsun Wah; and

(3) the New Structured Documents (collectively, the New Loan
Agreement, the New Power of Attorney, the New Blank
Shareholders’ Resolution, the New Blank Share Transfer
Documents, the New Share Pledge Agreement, the New Call
Option Agreement and the New Shareholders’ Agreement),
pursuant to which the Group established the New VIE
Structure, which was on substantially the same terms as those
in place under the VIE Structure, save as to the identity of the
Local Partner.
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Summary of the principal terms of the New Structured
Documents:-

(1)

(i)

New Loan Agreement

Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited as the
lender and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as the borrower for
an interest-free loan of US$2,500,000 from the date of
signing the New Loan Agreement until the time when
it is terminated for the sole purpose of payment for the
acquisition of 51% of the equity interests of the
Landholding Company. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah shall only
repay the loan, including any, taxes, charges,
indemnities, fees, costs and any expenses and all
obligations and liabilities in relation to the loan under
the New Loan Agreement to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
by way of transferring 51% of the equity interests of
the Landholding Company held by Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah, and any and all shares held by Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah which accounts for 51% of the equity interests of
the Landholding Company (the “Relevant Shares”) to
Ming Fai Holdings Limited or to any other person to be
designated by Ming Fai Holdings Limited.

New Power of Attorney

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, the Landholding Company and
the Company are the parties, pursuant to which
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has granted a general and
irrevocable power of attorney and proxy to the
Directors and their successors (including a liquidator
replacing the Directors) (the "Attorneys”) or its
appointees over all business activities concerning and
his right to vote as the ultimate shareholder of the
Landholding Company and has given the Attorneys or
its appointees the authority and rights to vote as his
proxy at any shareholders’ meeting and board meeting
to deal with all aspects of the management and
operations of the Landholding Company including, but
not limited to, the disposition or acquisition of assets,
appointment of officers and employees, day-to-day
business decisions, maintenance of records, declaration
of profits, signing minutes, filing documents with the
relevant companies registry, and other issues
concerning the Landholding Company which are
allowable by laws in force, and, for and on behalf of
Ming Fai Holdings Limited and as its designated person,
to collect all dividends or profit declared to him as a
shareholder of the Landholding Company, which are to
be transferred and assigned only to Ming Fai Holdings
Limited pursuant to the New Shareholders’ Agreement.
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(iif)

(iv)

(v)

New Blank Shareholders’ Resolution

Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has pre-signed and thumb-printed
a blank shareholders’ resolution for the approval of the
disposal of any immovable property(ies) of the
Landholding Company.

New Blank Share Transfer Documents

Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has pre-signed the blank share
transfer documents that can be completed and filed
with the Ministry of Commerce of Cambodia in relation
to the Relevant Shares in the Landholding Company
held by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah.

New Share Pledge Agreement

Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited as pledgee
and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as pledgor and that
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has pledged the Relevant Shares,
including all dividends, interest or other income, paid
or payable after the date of the New Share Pledge
Agreement in respect of any of the Relevant Shares,
together with any and all rights and benefits that have
been created or exist with respect to the Relevant
Shares or any other shares in Mr. Ching Tsun Wah or
any other device in the nature of a security issued or
suffered by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah, as security to
guarantee the performance of the obligations and
liabilities which is owing to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah pursuant to the New Loan
Agreement. Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has undertaken not
to dispose, transfer or otherwise encumber any right
attaching to shares which are pledged as Relevant
Shares without prior written approval from Ming Fai
Holdings Limited.

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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(vi)  New Call Option Agreement

Ming Fai Holdings Limited, Mr. CHING Tsun Wah and
the Landholding Company are the parties, pursuant to
which the Landholding Company irrevocably granted
the exclusive right to Ming Fai Holdings Limited or its
assignees, from the date of signing of the New Call
Option Agreement indefinitely until all assets of the
Landholding Company are transferred to Ming Fai
Holdings Limited or its assignees and registration
process required thereafter has been completed with
the relevant local authorities, to purchase all or part of
the assets of the Landholding Company at market
value, to the maximum extent allowed by the then
applicable Cambodian laws and regulations. Each of
the Landholding Company and Mr. Ching Tsun Wah
has undertaken to return to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
any consideration it received in the event that Ming Fai
Holdings Limited exercises such option to acquire the

assets of the Landholding Company.

(vii)  New Shareholders’ Agreement

Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited and
Mr. Ching Tsun Wah agreed on the rights and
obligations of them as shareholders of the Landholding
Company and also, restrictions against Mr. Ching Tsun
Wah with respect of, among other things, the disposal
of the Relevant Shares, distribution of dividends and
management and operation of the Landholding
Company, to parties other than Ming Fai Holdings
Limited or to any other person to be designated by
Ming Fai Holdings Limited, for three years commencing
from the date of the New Shareholders’ Agreement. If
both parties to the New Shareholders’ Agreement
agree, the term of the New Shareholders’ Agreement
may be renewed by writing every three years, subject

to the compliance with the Listing Rules.

If there are any dividends, profits, benefits or interests
declared in relation to the interests of Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah as a shareholder in the Landholding Company, he
can only transfer and assign these interests to Ming Fai
Holdings Limited or to any other person to be
designated by Ming Fai Holdings Limited, and

ultimately, the Company.
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Upon the Change of Local Partner, Ming Fai Holdings Limited and
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah were the shareholders of the Landholding
Company holding its equity interest as to 49% and 51%,
respectively. The Landholding Company remained as if it was a
subsidiary of the Company and its financial results would continue to
be accounted for and consolidated in the accounts of the Group. The
Landholding Company is not engaged in any business activities other
than holding a land parcel and the properties on the land parcel and
for property investment.

The reasons for replacing the Local Partner with Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah as one of the shareholders of the Landholding Company was
because Mr. CHING Tsun Wah became a Cambodian citizen and his
involvement in the Group’s hospitality supplies business in Cambodia
significantly increased. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has also developed
necessary and adequate knowledge and familiarity with the rules and
regulations, and expertise in the operations of the Group’s hospitality
supplies business in Cambodia through his involvement in the
business since 2018. The Group’s business in Cambodia has also
been maturing and has become largely stable overtime. The Group's
management has also gained expertise overtime from its operations
in Cambodia.

In consideration of the foregoing, the Change of Local Partner (i)
would better safeguard the interests of the Company in the
Landholding Company by having a Director as a shareholder of the
Landholding Company instead of the Local Partner; and (ii)
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah would be a more suitable candidate to hold
the 51% shareholding in the Landholding Company than the Local
Partner as he has greater familiarity with the Group and its business.

Mr. Ching Tsun Wah, being the Executive Director, is a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the New Structured
Documents, in particular, the New Loan Agreement and the New
Shareholders’ Agreement which provides for the transfer and
assignment of dividends, profits, benefits or interests by Mr. Ching
Tsun Wah to Ming Fai Holdings Limited, constitute a connected
transaction and a continuing connected transaction of the Company,
respectively, under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EETEHRE (&)

REFZHAEBAL  HAEBEZERERA AR X
REEAEABAEIHARZKE  » Al
BHA%KS51%MHE - #F8 A BB
REARBZ—HHKBAR  HYBEES
BEANERRGAENAEBZER -BRiBEH
MR E2MEUARDEREIN  BEL
A BB B EMER -

HEERELEDMRESLABRAKSFTA LI
RAZHP—BBRRTARBEERLEKR
RHRAR  AREEAEERRBRZE
EREREB2EERNRRS - 2RERE
BT -N\FEELHESERKEN KPR
ZBEHEMER - THRARMRAERER
BUEZARD 2AMBRATE LERBEE
SEBZEFEANE - ARBENRIPREZER
BEKA KBRS ER - AKEEEET
BERBERNRBEREHZERAH -

ZEI EMBER  EFEWEEANHR—F
EEMIEEHWERBAEAFELIHAR 2 —
ZRE - IEERRERRBDRFTE LA
Az RINVARBERELEHAEER
HEEXBRANL HEHREHLERATER
AEBEA LT AT Z51%M%H#E -

BiE TR AEI14A07(1)E - BIEZFE LA
(BRTTER) AARRIZEEBEAL - At
RIZEEMABANEAE  FEBEXHET
BETHR G  LEEFEZRBZERFTRE
e GRERELEMPBIZERBER QA EZE
EABRRE mN - M) o hl K
AABMBER I RIFEBRERS °

RERRZERARAR o —T - —FFH

35



36

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEE8HS (&)

As the highest of all of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the New Loan Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
New Loan Agreement is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but is exempt from the circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As none of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transfer
and assignment of dividends, profits, benefits or interests by
Mr. Ching Tsun Wah to Ming Fai Holdings Limited under the New
Shareholders’ Agreement exceeds 5% and the total annual amount
payable to Ming Fai Holdings Limited is below HK$3 million, it is fully
exempted from the relevant requirements of reporting,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Risks and limitations relating to the New VIE Structure:-

o Ming Fai Holdings Limited may bear economic risks as the
shareholder of the Landholding Company, and the Group’s
financial performance may be adversely affected and financial
support may need to be provided if the Landholding Company
suffers losses.

o The New Structured Documents may not be as effective as
direct ownership in providing control over the Landholding
Company if Mr. CHING Tsun Wah fails to perform his
obligations under the New Structured Documents or otherwise
have disputes with the Group.

o It is unforeseeable that there may be change of interpretation
and determination by the Cambodian government on the
compliance of the arrangement contemplated by the New
Structured Documents with Cambodian laws and regulations.

o Potential conflicts of interests or potential disputes may arise
due to dual roles for Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as a shareholder of

the Landholding Company and an Executive Director.

o The Company does not maintain an insurance policy to cover
the risks relating to arrangement under the New VIE Structure.
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In order to mitigate the risks, the Board will review and monitor the
overall compliance of the New VIE Structure from time to time. In
case if there is any major issues arising from the implementation and
compliance with the New VIE Structure or any regulatory enquiries
from governmental authorities, the Company will engage external
legal advisers and other professional advisers as appropriate.

The Group intends that and the terms of the New Structured
Documents have provided that the New VIE Structure will be
unwinded and the Group will directly hold 100% equity interests in
the Landholding Company and/or the Land and the Properties when
the Foreign Ownership Restrictions no longer exist.

Details of the New VIE Structure was set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 June 2021.

Related Party Transactions

Except the rental charged by Ming Fai Plastic Industrial Company to
the Group constitute continuing connected transactions, which are
fully exempted from the relevant requirements of reporting,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, none of the other significant
related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the "Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers” (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:
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Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares

Number of Shares held

RGO RERRG 2HR

BEERMDEE
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate issued Shares
Personal Family Interests (734,262,697
Interests Interests (interests of Shares)
(beneficial (interests of controlled as at
Name of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) Total 31 December 2022
R-E—C
+=ZHA=+-—8
2RITRG
PN 3 EY T E EE R (734,262,6978%)
BEENA (BmEEAA) (BLEER) (ZEEEER) #at ZBHNE DL
Mr. CHING Chi Fai 22,690,000 - 197,666,200 220,356,200 30.01%
BEELE (Notes 1 & 2)
(a1 2)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 4,000,000 - 32,499,600 36,499,600 4.97%
BEREE (Note 2)
(Htaz2)
Mr. LIU Zigang 4,000,000 - 20,057,200 24,057,200 3.28%
20 7l 55 &= (Note 3)
(H#3)
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah 3,734,000 775,000 - 4,509,000 0.61%
BlEELE (Note 4)
(Hiit4)
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching - - 32,499,600 32,499,600 4.43%
PR W )5 22 & (Note 2)
(Htaz2)
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan 600,000 - - 600,000 0.08%
FLEBHt A&
Mr. Ng Bo Kwong 600,000 - - 600,000 0.08%
SRR A&
Notes: st -
1. 165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited, 1. 165,166,600/ % 17 F1 Prosper Well International
which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai. Limited¥ B r Mz A rBEEBLEZER
E °
2. 32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise Trading Limited, which was 2. 32,499,600% H% 3 B Targetwise Trading

owned as to 50%, 19.23% and 30.77% by Mr. CHING Chi Keung,
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching and Mr. CHING Chi Fai respectively.

3. 20,057,200 Shares were held by Favour Power Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Zigang.

4. 775,000 Shares were held by Ms. SO Wai Yin Tracy, the spouse of
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors had any interest or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified by any Director, the interests and short positions of the
substantial shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), in
Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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ABRRRHEMALTRAEQE RS
REERG zEBERAR
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Long positions in Shares NGBz HE
Number of Shares held
BERGBEE
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate issued Shares
Personal Family Corporate Interests (734,262,697
Interests Interests Interests (interests of Shares)
(beneficial (interests of (beneficial controlled as at
Name owner) spouse) owner)  corporation) Total 31 December 2022
R=B-=%
t=A=t-H
BRTRA
AR RikER EEER EEER (734,262,6971%)
2/ 1% (BREEA) (RE#Ez) (BEEEA) (IBLEER) @t ZBNE
Prosper Well International Limited (Note 1) - - 165,166,600 - 165,166,600 22.49%
Prosper Well International Limited (#/77)
Ms. LO Kit Ling (Note 1) - 220,356,200 - - 220,356,200 30.01%
BRE L (M)
Mr. David Michael WEBB (Note 2) 44,625,000 - - 66,174,000 110,799,000 15.08%
David Michael WEBBZ 4 (#322)
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (Note 2) - - 66,174,000 - 66,174,000 9.01%
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (#722)
Notes: et -
1. 165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited, 1. 165,166,600/ }% 15 1 Prosper Well International
which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai (an Executive Director and Limited$ A ' M AR HARITEERARF
the Chairman of the Company). 32,499,600 Shares were held by TREEBEEZEHEA ©32,499,6000% i
Targetwise Trading Limited, which was owned as to 30.77% by Mr. CHING {5 FTargetwise Trading Limited# 48 + & A
Chi Fai. Mr. CHING Chi Fai also beneficially held 22,690,000 Shares. RIRREEEELHE30.77% % - 12 EE L
Ms. LO Kit Ling, being the spouse of Mr. CHING Chi Fai, was deemed to A JRE 2545 522,690,0000 B 1 - B2 L
be interested in the 220,356,200 Shares in which Mr. CHING Chi Fai TREBEEBREENER RERNELEL
interested. AR RS E9220,356,200% Ak D P B RE s o
2. Based on the disclosure of interests notices with the date of relevant event 2. BREBEARFRWHEEEHARA-T = —

on 3 December 2021 received by the Company, 66,174,000 Shares were
held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, which was wholly-owned by
Mr. David Michael WEBB, and Mr. David Michael WEBB beneficially held
44,625,000 Shares. Save as disclosed above, no further respective
disclosure of interests notices of Mr. David Michael WEBB and Preferable
Situation Assets Limited with the date of relevant event on or before 31
December 2022 were received by the Company.

F+_A=ZB2E=RFEEBAM  Preferable
Situation Assets Limited (FADavid Michael
WEBBSt 4 2 E# B ) 5 H66,174,0000% i
% > fDavid Michael WEBBE A MMEX#FH
44,625,00008 iR 15 bR JA E# B & 5 - K
A 7 8 & U ElDavid Michael WEBBJE 4 &
Preferable Situation Assets Limited& B &
BEMHESMA_E-_—F+-_A=+—H=
ATz E— PR EEBEM -
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Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
report, as at 31 December 2022, so far as it was known by or
otherwise notified by any Director, none of the substantial
shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), had any
interest or short positions in Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 5 October 2007. Particulars of
movements in the share options during the year ended 31 December
2022 were as follows:

Br E X R ARE [EERN AR R K& E A
EERAD AR RERE B KK
Bl —fEEEN RZEZ—_F+= A
=+—8 REMNESAATRBEEAELM
FRATBA MEAREREMAL(ES
Broh) AR D R AERERR (D B E R AR
BESRHEIEGFB6IEATFTEHEENERL
Rk E -

BREsTE

ARBN_FTZTLF+ATHEGRERRAE
Porgnt &) (BRI E]) - BE-_T_—F
T-A=Z+T—HLFE BREZEHFS
LI

Number of share options

BRERE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant  Exercise period Price 2022 the year the year the year the year 2022
R=ZBZZf R-B=-Zf
~A-H T=A=1-A
ERA RHBH TR ﬁﬁ{i HATR ERARE  FRTR  FREE  FREAX e RATRE
HK.
BT
Employees
EE
In aggregate 04-09-2012 04-09-2013 to 03-09-2022 0.62 225,000 - - - 225,000 -
Ch -2z “E-ZFNANEZR
NAmA —ZZ-FNA=H
04-09-2012 04-09-2014 to 03-09-2022 0.62 337,000 - - - 337,000 -
—T-CZF —Z-WMENANEZR
NATA —T--FNA=H
Total 562,000 - - - 562,000 -
it

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the
Share Option Scheme:

(1) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was to enable the
Board to grant options to selected employees (whether full
time or part time, including the Directors) of any member of
the Group (the “Eligible Persons”) as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.
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(2)

(3)

(4)

The terms of the Share Option Scheme provided that in
granting options under the Share Option Scheme, the Board
was entitled to determine whether there is any minimum
holding period, and whether there is any performance target
which must be achieved, before an option granted under the
Share Option Scheme is exercised. The Board was also entitled
to determine the option price per Share payable on the
exercise of an option (the "Exercise Price”) according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme. Such terms, together with
the incentives that the option would bring about, the Board
believed, would serve the purpose of the Share Option
Scheme.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was effective during the period of
ten years commencing on 2 November 2007 (the date on
which the Share Option Scheme become unconditional) and
the Share Option Scheme was expired on 1 November 2017.
On expiry of the Share Option Scheme, no further option shall
be granted but in all other respects the provisions of the Share
Options Scheme shall remain in force. All options granted and
accepted prior to such expiry shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with their terms and terms of the
Share Option Scheme.

Basis of eligibility

The Board at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
might think fit, granted options to any Eligible Person to
subscribe at the Exercise Price for such number of Shares as
determined in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Persons to the
grant of options were determined by the Board on the basis of
his contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.

Price for subscription of Shares

The Exercise Price was determined by the Board at the higher
of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the options which must be a business
day; and

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, provided that the Exercise Price shall in
no event be less than the nominal amount of one
Share.

(2)

(3)

(4)
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(5)

(6)

(7)

Acceptance of offers

The amount payable to the Company as acceptance of the
offer for the grant of an option was HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which might be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on
the listing date (i.e. 2 November 2007) (the “Scheme Limit").

The Scheme Limit could be refreshed at any time subject to
Shareholders’ approval provided that such limit as refreshed
should not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the renewed limit. Share options previously
granted under the Share Option Scheme (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised) would not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Limit as
refreshed. On 23 May 2013, the refreshment of the Scheme
Limit was approved by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting.

All the outstanding share options were lapsed on 4 September
2022. As at the date of this annual report, no Share was
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to any Eligible Person (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period should not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 23 September 2016, the Company adopted the Share Award
Scheme in which the Group’s employees, Directors, consultants or
advisers will be entitled to participate. The objectives of the Share
Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the contributions by certain
eligible persons; and (ii) to offer suitable incentives to attract and
retain targeted talents and personnel for the continuance of
operations and future development of the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the independent trustee
of the Share Award Scheme (Bank of Communications Trustee
Limited), which is independent and not connected with the Company,
purchased a total of 5,000,000 Shares at a total consideration of
approximately HK$2.1 million on the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the Share Award
Scheme. The number of Shares available for grant under the Share
Award Scheme as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 were
5,424,000 Shares and 10,424,000 Shares respectively. No Shares
have been granted to eligible persons up to the date of this report
under the Share Award Scheme since its adoption.

Subject to the scheme rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Board
may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion select any eligible
person for participation in the Share Award Scheme as a selected
person, and grant such number of awarded Shares to any selected
person at no consideration and in such number and on and subject
to such terms and conditions as it may in its absolute discretion
determine.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded Shares
which will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of Shares which may be awarded to a selected person under
the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board and the independent trustee in accordance with the
scheme rules and the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. Subject
to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on its adoption date (i.e. 23 September 2016).

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 23 September 2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” of this report, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2022.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries;
nor for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
were entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2022.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued Shares was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made
donations amounting to approximately HK$563,000.

AUDITOR

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high
standards of corporate governance practices. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise accountability and
transparency and are adopted in the best interest of the Company
and the Shareholders. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of the Shareholders and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has reviewed
its policies and practices on corporate governance, and policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has complied
with all the code provisions in the “Corporate Governance Code”
(the "CG Code”) as in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except the
deviation of the followings:

o Code provision C.2.1: the Board has not appointed an
individual to the post of chief executive officer up to the date
of this report and the role of the chief executive officer has
been performed collectively by all the Executive Directors,
including the Chairman of the Company. The Board considers
that this arrangement allows contributions from all Executive
Directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the
continuity of the Company’s policies and strategies.

o Code provision F.2.2: the Chairman of the Board did not
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
25 May 2022 due to other business commitments.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan

Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit

Each Executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years while each Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Director has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year. All the
aforesaid service contracts or letters of appointment may be
terminated by either party giving written notice in accordance with
the terms of service contracts or letters of appointment. All the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company.

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (the Chairman of the Company and an Executive
Director) and Mr. CHING Chi Keung (Executive Director) are brothers.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah (Executive Director) is the son of Mr. CHING
Chi Fai and a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

Nomination policy

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee would assess the suitability of a proposed
candidate based on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

o character and integrity;

o professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Group’s business and corporate
strategy;
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potential time commitment to discharge duties as a Director
and/or committee member and other directorships and
significant commitments;

Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted
for achieving the Board'’s diversity;

relevant requirements as stipulated under the Listing Rules,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, other applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and the Cayman Islands and
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;
and

independence requirements for the Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

Nomination procedures

Appointment of Director(s)

The Nomination Committee shall upon receipt of the
biographical details of the proposed candidate(s), evaluate the
candidate(s) based on the selection criteria of the nomination
policy to determine his/her qualification as a Director and
make recommendation for the Board’s consideration. The
selected individual(s) will be subject to re-election by
Shareholders at the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his/her initial appointment as Director(s) in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

For any person as nominated by a Shareholder for election as
a Director at a general meeting of the Company, the
qualification of the candidate(s) shall be evaluated first by the
Nomination Committee and then by the Board based on the
selection criteria of the nomination policy. The Board shall
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of such
proposed election as Director(s) at the general meeting of the
Company.

Re-election of Director(s)

The Nomination Committee shall review and determine
whether the retiring Director(s) continue to meet the selection
criteria of the nomination policy and make recommendation
for the Board’'s consideration. The Board shall then make
recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of Director(s) at the annual general
meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRE (B)

Board diversity

Summary of the Board diversity policy and measurable
objectives

The Board diversity policy of the Company setting out the approach
to diversity on the Board. The Company continuously seeks to
enhance its effectiveness and to maintain the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognise diversity at Board level as an
essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee and the Board will also take into
account factors based on the Group’s business model and specific
needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Diversified perspective

The following table illustrates the Board’s composition as at 31
December 2022:

EEEgmEZ L

EFEEHEZTILHFMER A5t 2
B#Z
ARBIZEZEREZTEBRET BER
EEeXEZTZ 8 - ARB—HBR
RAREBMERGERERSKFZRBESR A
RELEEZEEENZ TLRERHETE
ENERNE WEZTEEREFENES
b BREREARRRMER - Fik - XERK
EER Tk FELR Kk AZER
BER REZEGREZENHRELE
BeXBRARTHZBEEFTEEEZRER
AE - ZRBEMEREAZRERLASE
FEHRZBEBMIERE -

ZTILEE
TRIWIARZE-__F+_A=+—HZE
EeREHEMK

Designation ED NED INED
B BE FEFNE Eio)-o
1 :
Gender Male Female
14 51 Ef peqid
.
Age group 40-49 50-59 > 60
F A B 40%49 50%59 603k A
: :
Length of service (years) <5 6-10 > 11
BRBER (F) 5k AT 6210 A=
; ;

ED: Executive Director
NED: Non-Executive Director
INED: Independent Non-Executive Director

Our ten Directors with different educational background possess
diversified expertise and skills, including industrial, business
management, sales and marketing, accounting and finance, import
and export, hotel development consultancy, strategies development
and management consultancy. The valuable experience and expertise
they have brought to our business are critical for the long-term
growth of the Group.

The Board and the Nomination Committee considered that the

diversity of the Board is sufficient and that the Board diversity policy
for the year ended 31 December 2022 is effective.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

HE HITEF
HPE : FHITEF
BE BUHPTEE

BN TREFABETRANHEESR I HE
BERLEMBERMBRNE BREIX %
BEER HERMHERE S AWK #E
HA - BEBERRER REERREEAEN
FRH - WERBMANEHREHEELR K
EENE BAKENRERREWEE -

EZehREZESERAE EFTEHNNXE
ZnitBRS MEBEE_ZT_—_F+=A
=T —HLEFENESEKEZTILBURTR
BEK -



Gender diversity

Our Board currently has one female Director out of ten Directors. The
Board targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation and is committed to take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female Board members over time as and when suitable
candidates are identified. Independent professional search firm(s)
may be engaged as one of the channels to help in identifying
potential successors to the Board for achieving gender diversity, as
and when appropriate.

As at 31 December 2022, we maintained 17:83 and 70:30 ratio of
women to men in our senior management and workforce (including
senior management) respectively. The Group targets to maintain at
least the current level of female representation in our senior
management and the current level of diversity in our workforce
(including senior management) and will timely review the gender
diversity in all levels in accordance with the business development of
the Group.

Board independence

The Company has appointed sufficient number of Independent
Non-Executive Directors in accordance to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and one of them has appropriate accounting
professional qualifications. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-Executive Director an annual written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Directors are of the view that all Independent Non-Executive Directors
meet the independence requirements as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Mechanisms for ensuring independent views and input

The Company has in place mechanisms whereby Directors can
express their independent views in different manners through formal
and informal means, including regular Board meetings, the annual
meeting between the Chairman and Independent Non-Executive
Directors, interactions with other Board members (including the
Chairman) outside the boardroom. The Board considered that such
mechanism for the year ended 31 December 2022 is effective.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company and monitors performance and risks in pursuit of the
strategic objectives of the Company. Day-to-day management of the
Company is delegated to the Executive Directors or the senior
management in charge of each division. All Directors (including
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors)
have been consulted on all major and material matters of the Group.
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The Board has delegated some of its function to the Board committees,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Board Committees”
below. Matters specifically reserved for the Board, including convening
Shareholders’ meetings, implementing the Shareholders’ resolutions,
determining the Group’s business plans and strategies, formulating the
Group’s annual budgets and final accounts, formulating proposals for
dividend and bonus distributions and for increase or reduction of share
capital, determining the Group’s corporate structure, formulating
investment plans as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties
as conferred by the Articles of Association of the Company.

Meetings’ attendance

The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings, committee meetings
and annual general meeting of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022 were as follows:

E=ZeCHEBOBETRTESZES
HABERN TXEEZES] /BT
REREFTGIRY  BRAMKRRER
HITHRRRBRERE BEASENEBTER
R GREAKENFERERZ2FRE
B TR B~ 20 KT AR A0 Bk H R A AN B 5 2R
BEARENCERE HIERENS - K
FATEARRAMEIRAMAAE T 2 Mg
N BEERBE -

LR
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BFEREHEFBENOT

Number of meetings attended/held

R/ BTEERY

Audit Nomination Remuneration Executive Investment Annual
Board Committee Committee  Committee  Committee  Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ES%  §NEEE BeZAC  FMEER 4GZRE BNERR BR
T - R - TR R R i
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. CHING Chi Fai ER b 44 - N 0N 44 1N 01
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BERtE 44 - - - 44 - o
Mr. LIU Zigang HTEts 44 - - - 44 - o
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah REEEE 44 - . - 44 . i
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEgRE 44 - - - 44 11 i
Non-Executive Director F417ES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching ReERT 44 - - - - - i
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUkHTES
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan Kyt 44 ElE! - 0N - = on
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RRRSEE 44 3 - 0N - = on
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson BamLE 44 33 1 1/ - - i
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit Bafkrs 44 33 1 0N - 1 i
Total number of meetings held BEfTEEEY 4 3 1 2 4 1 1
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZES
The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination EEEZZEKUBEZZEZ  -IEEXZET ¥
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Executive Committee MZEE  HITEZEShEEZEZ -

and the Investment Committee.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, who have appropriate accounting professional
qualifications and relevant expertise. Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung Allan,
NG Bo Kwong and SUN Eric Yung Tson are members of the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in
fulfilling its audit duties through the review and supervision of the
Group's financial reporting system, risk management system and
internal control procedures, details of responsibilities are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which are published
on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the website of
the Company.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 December 2022 are summarised below:

o reviewed the interim and annual results, the relevant
statements and reports of the Group, the significant financial
reporting judgements, in order to monitor the integrity and
whether in accordance with the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and the applicable accounting

standard;

o reviewed the external auditor’'s audit plan and terms of
engagement;

o reviewed management letter and any materials queries raised

by the external auditor to the management in relation to the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s responses;

o reviewed the key audit matters and discussed with external
auditor and the management;

o reviewed the independency and objectivity of the external
auditor, the effectiveness of audit process and the non-audit
service fee payable to the external auditor;

o recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the external
auditor and the audit fee payable to the external auditor for
Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting;
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. reviewed the effectiveness of financial control, risk
management and internal control systems involving financial,
operational and compliance control and internal audit function
of the Group;

o reviewed the internal audit report prepared by the internal
auditor and the management’s responses to the findings by
the internal audit function;

o considered and reviewed the proposals of internal audit plan;

o reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, budget of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal audit functions; and

o reviewed the whistleblowing policy of the Company and
recommended for the Board's approval.

Auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fees payable by the Company
to the external auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers for
audit services was HK$2,700,000 and no non-audit services was
provided.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director,
Mr. CHING Chi Fai as the Chairman and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors as members, namely Messrs. SUN Eric Yung
Tson and KWONG Tony Wan Kit.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the identification and
recommendation to the Board of possible appointees as Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
appointment or re-appointment of Directors, succession planning of
Directors and assessing the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, details of responsibilities are set out in the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, which are
published on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the
website of the Company.
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are summarised below:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board;

o reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Board
diversity policy of the Company;

o recommended to the Board regarding the re-election of
directors for Shareholders’ approval at the annual general
meeting;

o assessed the independence of the Independent Non-Executive

Directors; and

o reviewed the amendments to the nomination policy of the
Company and recommended for the Board’s approval.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
Mr. CHING Chi Fai as member and all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan as the Chairman and
Messrs. NG Bo Kwong, SUN Eric Yung Tson and KWONG Tony Wan
Kit as members.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy
and structure, the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
and senior management, and the remuneration of Non-Executive
Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors, details of
responsibilities are set out in the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, which are published on the HKEXnews
website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are summarised below:

o considered and reviewed the service contract of each Executive
Director and the remuneration packages, including
discretionary bonus, performance, time commitment and
responsibilities of each Executive Director and the senior
management, with reference to the prevailing market
conditions, and recommended for the Board’s approval;

o considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy;
and
o reviewed the respective letter of appointment and director’s

fee of each Non-Executive Director and Independent
Non-Executive Director and recommended for the Board'’s
approval.
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The emoluments of the five Executive Directors who are also
regarded as the senior management of the Company are disclosed in
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emolument of the senior management other than the five
Executive Directors by band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is
as follows:

AUBTER(MRARANSREEAR)
FY 32 B R e & A RS SR R P FE37 R AR B

HE-_ZTE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFEXKH
BEARE O HNEREEAE (TEERMHR
TER)HFHFIWOT

Number of Individual(s)

A

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

21,000,000 7T

1,000,001 7L E 1,500,000/ 7T 1
1,500,001% T £ 2,000,000/8 7T -

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai is the Chairman and Messrs. CHING Chi Keung,
LIU Zigang, CHING Tsun Wah and KEUNG Kwok Hung are members.

The Executive Committee has been delegated with the general
powers to deal with the daily operations and management of the
Company, including but not limited to, setting up new companies,
opening bank accounts, arranging banking facilities, affixing the
Common Seal, issuing of Shares upon exercise of any subscription or
conversion rights under any share schemes of the Company, warrants
or convertible notes.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHING Chi Fai as the Chairman and Mr. KEUNG Kwok
Hung as member, and one Independent Non-Executive Director,
namely, Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit as member.

The Investment Committee has been delegated by the Board to
assess, consider and approve/recommend any potential investments
and/or divestments of the Group, which are less than US$20 million,
or 5% of the total market capitalisation of the Company, in
aggregate in each financial year, whichever is lower, and approve
each investment/divestment reaching/exceeding HK$3 million but not
exceeding 10% of the aforesaid aggregate amount.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out in the CG Code. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Listing Rules and its
updates, the compliance of the Model Code by the Directors and
employees and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. All the Directors understand the
importance of continuous professional development and are
committed to participating any suitable training or reading relevant
materials in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company has received from each Director his/her training record
of participation in continuous professional development for the year
ended 31 December 2022:
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Type of trainings
EHlER

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHING Chi Fai ey e
Mr. CHING Chi Keung (et
Mr. LIU Zigang 217 b 5 A
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah REERE
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZRH S E
Non-Executive Director EHITES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BRYLS 2+
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHTES
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan LIRS A
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RRIEE
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson REEIASTE
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit BB oot

Type of trainings:
A: attending webinar(s)/seminar(s)
B: reading materials

A, B
A, B
A, B
A, B
A, B
A, B
A, B
A, B
A, B
A, B
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on 5 October 2007. Having made specific
enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group,
and of results and cash flow for the financial period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis. The Directors also warrant that
the Group’s financial statements will be published in a timely
manner.

The statement of the reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group of the auditor of the Company is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 61 to 65 of this annual
report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and reviewing their effectiveness annually. The Group’'s risk
management and internal control systems includes a well-defined
management structure with limits of authority which is designed for
the achievement of business objectives, safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring proper maintenance of
books and records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication, and ensuring compliance with relevant
legislations and regulations. In addition, the Group has established
risk management procedures to identify and prioritise risks for the
business to be addressed by management. At least on an annual
basis, management identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises
the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans and risk owners are then established for those risks
considered to be significant.
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The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities. The Audit
Committee and the Board conduct a review of the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group annually.
The Board appointed a professional consulting firm with the
responsibility to conduct the internal audit function and assess risks
of the Company and perform the agreed-upon procedures in relation
to the internal controls of the business of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The review of the systems for the year ended 31 December 2022,
included but not limited to, the Group’s ability to cope with its
business and changing external environment; the scope and quality
of management’s review on risk management and internal control
systems; the results of internal audit work; the communication with
the Board in relation to result of risks and internal control review; the
significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and the status of compliance with the rules and
regulations. The Audit Committee and the management will follow
up the suggestions from the aforesaid professional consulting firm to
further improve the risk management and internal control systems.
The Board satisfies with the scope of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and considers that the systems
are effective and adequate.

Procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of the SFO and the Listing
Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group will immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring that
information contained in published documents are not false or
misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the
omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in a
clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

A Shareholders communication policy of the Company has been
adopted to ensure that the Shareholders are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to the balanced and understandable
information about the Company.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
in the Company to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong.

Corporate communications (including interim and annual reports,
ESG reports, announcements, circulars, notices of meetings, etc.) will
be provided to Shareholders in plain language and in both English
and Chinese versions to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding.

Information on the Company’s website is updated on a regular basis.
Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange is also
published on the website of the Company. Such information includes
financial reports, ESG reports, results announcements, circulars and
notices of general meetings and other regulatory disclosures.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their
behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings. The Company will
use general meetings as a tool to effectively communicate with
Shareholders and allow Shareholders a reasonable opportunity to
pose questions to the Board. Board members, chairmen of Board
committees or their delegates and the external auditor will attend
the annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

Having considered that the multiple communication channels in place
and properly implemented during the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Board is satisfied that the Shareholders communication policy is
effective.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by the
Shareholders

The procedures of convening an extraordinary general meeting by
the Shareholders are as follows:

Pursuant to article 81 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings may be convened on the written requisition of any
one or more members deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the voting rights, on a one vote per Share
basis, of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be convened
on the written requisition of any one member of the Company which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office,
specifying the objects of the meeting and the resolutions to be added
to the meeting agenda, and signed by the requisitionist(s). If the
Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board, provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolution at general meetings under the Articles of Association of
the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting by following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may make enquires to the Board in writing to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit D3,
8/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A special resolution has been passed at the annual general meeting
held on 25 May 2022 to amend and adopt the amended and restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company to reflect
the current revised requirements of the Listing Rules, including but
not limited to the Core Shareholder Protection Standards in Appendix
3 to the Listing Rules, the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Act 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, and to adopt
house-keeping improvements to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

e
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MING FAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ming Fai International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 66 to 156, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the assessment of the
expected credit losses of trade and bills receivables.

Key Audit Matter
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Assessment of the expected credit losses of trade and bills
receivables

Refer to Notes 3(a)(iv), 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements for the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of trade and
bills receivables amounted to HK$653.0 million, which accounted
for 37.3% of the Group's total assets. Provision is made for lifetime
expected credit losses on trade and bills receivables.

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected credit
losses. Receivables relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on their credit
risk characteristics and assessed collectively for credit losses allowance.
When measuring the expected credit losses, the Group considered
the credit losses incurred in the past, and adjusted by taking into
consideration current conditions and forward looking factors.

We focused on this area because the assessment of the expected credit
losses is subject to significant management judgement involved in the
estimation of the credit loss allowance.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZAMBRSE (B

BEETERE (H)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

In auditing the recognition of credit losses allowance of trade and bills
receivables, we have performed the following key procedures on the
assessment prepared by management.

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and assessment process of estimating the expected credit losses
allowances of trade and bills receivables, evaluated and validated
the key controls. We understood and validated the credit control
procedures performed by management, including its procedures
on periodic review on the assessment on the expected credit losses
allowance of receivables.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors associated with the accounting estimates for credit loss
allowance of trade and bills receivables.

We assessed the appropriateness of the grouping and the credit losses
provisioning methodology adopted by management, discussed with
management, for the details of their evaluations and challenged the
underlying information referenced by management, which included
comparing with external evidence obtained from independent research
on public available information, as well as forward looking estimates,
performing ageing analysis, examining the historical settlement records
and testing of the subsequent settlements of the customers.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the
provision for loss allowance.

Based on the above, we considered that management’s judgements
and assumptions applied in the assessment of expected credit losses of
trade and bills receivables were supportable by the evidence obtained
and procedures performed.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Chun Yu.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meEERER

As at 31 December W+=H=+—H

2022 2021
== T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE FHET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Goodwill FPRES 9a) 5,398 5,390
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 6 405,964 445,126
Right-of-use assets FREEE 7(@a) 101,155 106,235
Investment property KLEYE 8 16,638 15,911
Intangible assets | EE 9(b) 483 369
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTHE E 10 3,205 3,771
Other non-current assets HiIEmBEE 15 6,684 11,510
Investment in an associated company R—EBEATNEE 5,463 5,221
Investments in joint ventures RELELENRE 116 323
Other financial assets at amortised cost ~ IZ# K AFIBR 2 E &R EE 14 25 132
Total non-current assets kRBEELTE 545,131 593,988
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =7E 11 260,176 266,284
Other current assets HibmEhEE 15 50,405 56,686
Tax recoverable EILEE 370 11,952
Other financial assets at amortised cost ~ ZEE X AFIIRZ E S EE 14 14,101 15,750
Amounts due from joint ventures ERE S DENRE 35 522 455
Amount due from an associated company & U — &1 i & A 715008 13 2,848 2,338
Trade and bills receivables BUKE SRR EEE 12 558,835 528,418
Pledged bank deposit IR ITER 16 11,717 11,689
Cash and cash equivalents HERBELEMHEIER 17 305,356 251,164
Total current assets REBEEARE 1,204,330 1,144,736
Total assets EEHAE 1,749,461 1,738,724
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners ERATEEA
of the Company PEfh R
Share capital A% A 20 7.343 7,343
Reserves s 1,151,762 1,133,259
Final dividend proposed EEAEKEE 32 22,028 -
1,181,133 1,140,602
Non-controlling interests eI RE = (49,652) (46,156)
Total equity Mg 1,131,481 1,094,446

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
REEEBEBR(E)
As at 31 December W+—_A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-— T —F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ok FET FAT
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISTRAE 10 5,602 5,608
Other non-current payables B IER B RS FRIE 23 9,967 11,829
Borrowings E=Y 21 2,206 2,742
Lease liabilities HEaE 7(a) 3,834 2,395
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBEHEEE 21,609 22,574
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables ERE SRR 22 168,318 178,432
Accruals and other payables et E A N E i fE A OB 23 277,273 276,050
Current income tax liabilities BNERFS M aE 19,390 7,580
Borrowings E=Y 21 108,547 138,606
Lease liabilities HEaE 7(a) 5,166 3,483
Loans from non-controlling interests KEFEERERCE R 24 17,486 17,369
Dividends payable EIR B 191 184
_ Total current liabilites ~ #BAf#&® 000 596,371 621,704
Total liabilities BEHE 617,980 644,278
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 1,749,461 1,738,724

The consolidated financial statements on page 66 to 156 were approved 662156 B MGAMBHRENR S -—=F=
by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2023 and were signed on its A+ \BREEEeWETHUTEERE
behalf. EE o

CHING Chi Fai CHING Tsun Wah
BEE B
Director Director

EE EF

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with AR A B E B E KR R 2 M —of
the accompanying notes. Eﬂi °
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BEF—A=t+—RAILEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meETHEWERER

For the year ended 31 December

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

2022 2021
—E=-= B
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kz FTHT FET
Revenue WA 5 1,793,025 1,435,826
Cost of sales HEKAK 25 (1,368,212) (1,166,181)
Gross profit EF 424,813 269,645
Other income H e A 26 12,758 8,266
Distribution costs DA 25 (216,575) (210,934)
Administrative expenses THR X 25 (113,816) (106,656)
Net impairment losses on financial assets TREEREBETE 25 (15,347) (47,983)
Impairment of goodwill R E 9@a) - (4,759)
Operating profit/(loss) TERF (BR) 91,833 (92,421)
Finance income WA 28 593 962
Finance costs B PR 28 (4,718) (2,425)
Share of profit/(loss) of an associated company  [E{5 —RIEE & A B1E A/ (E18) 511 (457)
Share of loss of a joint venture EiE—EeetEBE (207) (64)
Fair value gain on an investment property —BEREWME s ATENRS 8 1,974 -
Profit/(loss) before income tax REFFRBHRANER, (BE) 89,986 (94,405)
Income tax expenses FTiE R 30 (20,144) (3,520)
Profit/(loss) for the year EERN(EBE) 69,842 (97,925)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hi2E (BE) Wa
Item that may be subsequently HEAHEN 7R
reclassified to profit or loss B EHEH
Currency translation differences ERMmEERE (23,424) 10,970
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEZERE
for the year (E518) 2% 46,418 (86,955)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: s EERER, (FE) :
Owners of the Company PAN/NETEZ Y =N 75,511 (93,535)
Non-controlling interests it (5,669) (4,390)
69,842 (97,925)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EEEEZEKRE (FE)
for the year attributable to: AR
Owners of the Company ERAEEA 49,914 (82,845)
Non-controlling interests FER = (3,496) (4,110)
46,418 (86,955)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to KATEEA
owners of the Company EEERERN(FR)
(expressed in HK cents) (LB R)
Basic BEWN 31(a) 10.4 (12.8)
Diluted e 31(b) 10.4 (12.8)
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be | #it 45 & % T 4 55 3= FE B2 RE T 2 M 5F — OF B



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EEmEER

For the year ended 31 December #HE+=—A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARARAAEL
Shares
held for the
share award
scheme Non-
Share (the Share Other controlling Total
capital  “Scheme”)  premium reserves Sub-total interests equity
AROER
EiE 15 )
kx  KEZRf RiVaE Bt Nt FBRER s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TEn

Balance at 1 January 2021 RZB--E-fA-RArzEt 7343 (6,051) 613,261 619,827 1,234,380 (42,046) 1,192,334
Comprehensive loss EFE
Loss for the year TEEER - - - (93,535) (93,535) (4.390) (97,925)
Other comprehensive income ~ E 2 Fl3
Currency translation differences ~ §HHEZE - - - 10,690 10,690 280 10,970
 Total omprehensiveloss  2EEREE S S T s @8l AN0) (86955

Transactions with ownersin ~ EEEAETZRS

their capacity as owners (MEEASH)
Final dividend relating “ETEREY

t0 2020 RERE - - - (10,933) (10,933) - (10,933)

Balance at 31 December 2021

R-BZ-E+ZA=+-B2#H 7343 (6,051) 613,261 526,049 1,140,602 (46,156) 1,094,446

Balance at 1 January 2022 RZB--E-A-He&H 138 (6,051) 613,261 526,049 1,140,602 (46,156) 1,094,446
Comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2E M/ (§8)
Profit/loss) for the year REREH/ (B8) - - - 75,511 75,511 (5,669) 69,842
Other comprehensive Hi2E (58) /b

(loss)/income
Currengy translation differences ~ §HAE£E - - - (25,597) (25,597) 2173 (23,424)
Total comprehensive 2ENE/ (BR)AE

income/(loss) - - - 49,914 49,914 (3,49) 46,418
Transactions with ownersin ~ EEEARTZRE

their capacity as owners (REEAZH)
Interim dividend relating “ECCEEY

102022 (Note 32) mERE (H3) - - - (7,238) (7,238) - (7,238)
Purchase of shares for the SHEBA RS

Scheme (Note 19(b)) (Hiz19t) - (2,145) - - (2,145) - (2,145)

Balance at 31 December 2022

AZBZZESZA=t-He#B 738 (8,196) 613,261 568725 1,181,133 (49,6520 1,131,481

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in |- it 45 & 4 25 B &h 5% f& B BE BT 2 T 3% — 6
conjunction with the accompanying notes. FIE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/-_r\ Eﬁﬁ/ﬂb%%

For the year ended 31 December HE+-—A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
—=E_= —E-—4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FET T
Cash flows from operating activities RETBNRERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations B EREAE,(FTA)
Cbiien 33(a) 130,440 (63,153)

Interests paid EAHFB (4,718) (2,425)
Income tax paid EHFTEHR 4,032 (33,072)
Net cash generated from/(used in) ReEE e (FiA)

operating activities R&FH 129,754 (98,650)
Cash flows from investing activities REZHNRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B A% - BE MR E (24,209) (44,322)
Purchase of intangible assets BARLEE (805) (452)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - FEMRE

and equipment T8 508 33(b) 337 1,539
Interests received =S 593 962
Receipts from government grants WST B R A 4 441 2,424
Short-term bank deposits with maturity FIER B BB =18 A 5 5E B

over 3 months IRITHER - 973
Dividends received from an associated EHQ BE2=WNC]

company A% & - 82
Net cash used in investing activities REZBHFAREEE (23,643) (38,794)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHNRERE
Purchase of shares for the Scheme TLETEIEE A Z B’ 19(b) (2,145) -
Proceeds from borrowings F“éﬁﬁ?%#k 33(c) 5,000 47,671
Repayments of borrowings BEgEy 33(c) (35,476) (27,675)
Principal elements of lease payments HMENRN AN 33(c) (5.822) (5,417)
Dividends paid to the Company's BERAQFRERE

shareholders (7,231) (10,924)
Increase in pledged bank deposit B RITIFRIE M - (11,689)
Proceeds from loans from non-controlling R & =R E 2

interests Fr 5 5K18 33(c) 286 -
Net cash used in financing activities RETBFARSFE (45,388) (8,034)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BE&RRESEEHEH

equivalents wm CRD) FHE 60,723 (145,478)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning F#ME & MRS

of the year ZEIBH 251,164 392,954
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and cash HehBRLEEEEN

equivalents bE X (B58) Was (6,531) 3,688
Cash and cash equivalents attheend of FHRWREREL

the year Z{EER 17 305,356 251,164

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of hospitality supplies products,
trading of operating supplies and equipment and manufacturing
and trading of health care and hygienic products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 May
2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands. Its registered
address is at the offices of Maples Corporate Services Limited,
PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman
Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 28 March 2023.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of an investment property, which
is carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (R)

PEDN

Fip

2

(=)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) New and amended standard adopted by the

(9]

Group

The Group has applied the following amendments or annual
improvements for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2022:

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use — Amendments to HKAS 16

- Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract —
Amendments to HKAS 37

- Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020

- Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments
to HKFRS 3

- Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been published
that are not mandatory for the reporting period during the
year ended 31 December 2022 and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments or
interpretations are not expected to have a material impact on
the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(1)

(ii)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2(e)).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
balance sheet respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (refer to Note 2(d)(iv) below), after initially
being recognised at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. The Group has investments in joint
ventures.

Joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (refer to Note 2(d)(iv) below), after
initially being recognised at cost in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2(m).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(v) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of

the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/

permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)
)

2

MEmEAME (F)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
° consideration transferred,;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount
rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained
from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently re-measured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation

(1)

(if)

(ifi)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(li)  Group companies (Continued)

o all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company

are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange

difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial year in which they are
incurred.

Freehold land that has an indefinite useful life are not subject
to depreciation and is tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired.

Depreciation for buildings is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate cost over its estimated useful lives of 20
years.

Depreciation for other property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of 10 years or lease period
Plant and machinery 10% - 33%

Motor vehicles 20%

Furniture and fixtures 33%
Computer equipment 33%

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in profit or
loss.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs of construction including borrowing costs attributable
to the construction during the period of construction. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group,
is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. Subsequently, it is carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined annually
by external valuer. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices from less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed annually
by external valuer with changes in fair values recorded in
profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in profit or loss.

FERBHERME (E)

2 EBEASTHBHEHBE@

()

()

RAEERZERERAR o

ME - BERRE @

HENRBIZEHRIAEKREE
MEBETE - UNEmAER -

ERIREREEZRRBEFLREZ
ME BB R&E TR AR
MEBRE KABREET
BN (BERIRETHMES
TRERNEERR) REREER
TRA{E#REE M&n - T8 E
ETRELITERS -

REME

AEBESESRPHESREHR
BEATHESIMERBMHAEL
BERZOELIBRREME -

REMENTREKLE B
EHBZZMA -2k KE
MEZERAFENE RINEMHE
MMEFEMET 2 AMME 2F
BNEBRMESERBKE L&
ERERNERNEEZEE it
HIMAEZRELAER - WEZX
REFETHER AEEASE
HM R fThERE M2 EER
BREMEZzTSROMZERK
MEARSREFRIEF - HFM-HE
FFEHIMNEBEMMARE - T
BRARAFEZBAFABRRA -

W% WMEIREEEAEARS
BEMRARENE  AZER
REREANETERERFER
ERZERNEENERR/DE
BERREOERL AWM W
FEkE KRR R RERERD -
Az WA E s A RERR

R FFR

81



82

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Goodwiill

)

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2(e). Goodwill
is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs") for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments (Note 5).

Intangible assets

(i) Trademarks, investment in club debentures and
software licences
Separately acquired trademarks, investment in club
debentures and software licences are shown at historical
cost. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademarks, investment in club
debentures and software licences over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

(i)  Operating licence
Operating licence acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. It has a
finite useful life and is subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of the operating licence
of 2 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

(n)

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each balance sheet
date.

Financial assets

()  Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

The Group measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial asset
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(1)  Amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Financial assets (Continued)

(ilf)  Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

@)

FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, amount due from
an associated company and amounts due from
joint ventures, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
("HKFRS 9"”), which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group measures the expected credit loss as either
12-month expected credit loss or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit loss.

(o) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is assigned to individual items of inventory on the
basis of weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
and distribution costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade, bills and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and bills receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade and bills
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less provision for
impairment.

When a trade and bills receivable are uncollectible, they are
written off against the allowance account for trade and bills
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, and deposits held at call
with banks with original maturities of three months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Trade and other payables

(t)

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods or services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are unsecured, recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

2

BEASTHERME@
(s) EREZREMERN

(t)

FE S B 5 B8R FR 38 10 B R 4R 2R Al (7]
ZNE LA SR e EN D N
RHNBE FRERNFBE-—FHK
MR (REER MEXBHLER
REBEHMN) 2 ARNES R
HiE R ED B ARBEE B
A A2 BERBEE -

eS8 5 K E A BRI | R A
NEBRFEER  AREERE
RERMNEIEREHKAGE -

BE

EENTREATFEHNGREEEN
RGRATER - BEERREH
FARFIME - PSR (FIBR R H K
) BRFE OB A 2 E E ENME
EREERABERNEAEBSE

7o

EEFBMEBRAEANERDHE
MEEMOBERT ARILERK
MEBERINNERIERR
ERXZER -HLBRT &%
ERBETEEIRMEBELEDL A
WE B RBRZEFHRE A8
MoXBAIEMOBRT % E
RENEERREE S RHE
MHRE TRAERERRAT
CABESH o

EANTRENETERE  BUH
HEME EERGEEERE
TG BHBRAEBRERT S —
THERABEMNKREMESRS N
RE(BREBENFRSEEN
PIAENRE) CRNERE £18
RS E MR A I T o

BROEARGEEAEGREREMNET R
BEFHEGEEARAZI T
BA TRABESHERRDEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Borrowing cost

(v)

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the company and its
subsidiaries, associated company and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on which
method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PEDN

Fip

2

(=)

MEmEAME (F)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled. The deferred income tax liability in
relation to investment property that is measured at fair value
is determined assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised if it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary income differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
income tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits

()

(if)

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related
services are recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision, where appropriate, is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within
twelve months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv)  Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

The Group companies in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by relevant
government authorities for its employees in the PRC and
contribute to these plans based on certain percentage
of the salaries of the employees on a monthly basis, up
to a maximum fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by
the relevant government authorities.

The government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and
future retired employees under these plans.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in a
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for
its employees in Hong Kong. MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme in accordance with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules
of MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries,
up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per employee per
month. The assets of MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the group companies in an independently
administered fund.

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in such contributions) to offset existing
contributions under the defined contribution schemes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

v)

(vi)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to a termination when the entity has a
detailed formal plan to terminate the employment of
current employee without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after balance sheet date are discounted to their present
value.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (shares or options) of the Company. The
fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the shares or options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the shares
or options granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(vi) Share-based compensation (Continued)
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

When the options are cancelled during vesting periods,
the Group recognises immediately the amount that
otherwise would have been recognised for services
received over the remainder of the vesting period.

When the options are modified, the Group will include
the incremental fair value granted in the measurement
of the amount recognised for services received as
consideration for the equity instruments granted. The
incremental fair value granted is the difference between
the fair value of the modified equity instrument and that
of the original equity instrument, both estimated as at
the date of the modification. If the modification occurs
during the vesting period, the incremental fair value
granted is included in the measurement of the amount
recognised for services received over the period from
the modification date until the date when the modified
equity instruments vest, in addition to the amount
based on the grant date fair value of the original equity
instruments, which is recognised over the remainder of
the original vesting period. If the modification occurs
after vesting date, the incremental fair value granted is
recognised immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE M %R R ME (R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAETHEHME@
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) EERR @0

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(vi) Share-based compensation (Continued)

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

(x) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimates of the expenditures required
to settle the present obligation of the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERMBHERRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after

eliminated sales within the Group.

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customer has accepted the products, the
collection of the related consideration is probable and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s

acceptance of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the

payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the Group recognises
the related revenue. The Group recognised its contract
liabilities under accruals and other payables as receipt in
advance from customers in the consolidated balance sheet.

(z) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.

(aa) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using

the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(ab) Government grant

(ac)

Grant from the government is recognised at its fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grant relating to costs is deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period necessary to match it with the
costs that it is intended to compensate.

Government grant relating to property, plant and equipment
and service concession arrangement is included in accruals
and other payables and is credited to the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments (if applicable):

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERMBHERRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(ac) Leases (Continued)

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses
recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received, nature of
the lease assets and the terms and conditions of the leases,
such as the lease periods and geographical locations.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(ac) Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following (if applicable):

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
. prepayment;

o any initial direct costs; and

. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 —
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from 1
January 2020. The amendment provides an optional practical
expedient allowing lessees to elect not to assess whether a
rent concession related to COVID19 is a lease modification.
Lessees adopting this election may account for qualifying
rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were
not lease modifications. The practical expedient only applies
to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions
are met: (a) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (b) any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and (c)
there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)
)

2

MEmEAME (F)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(ac) Leases (Continued)

The Group has also adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 —
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021,
which extended the practical expedient to lease payments
that were due on or before 30 June 2022.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all qualifying
COVID-19-related rent concessions.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet
based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

(ad) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired from the market
by the Scheme (Note 19(b)), the total consideration of shares
acquired from the market (including any directly attributable
incremental costs) is presented as shares held for the Scheme
and deducted from total equity.

(ae) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$ and United
States dollars (“US$"”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$ and US$,
and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The Group is subject
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency other
than HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the Group.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes that
the exchange rate risk for translations between HK$ and
US$ does not have a material impact to the Group. The
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

This currency exposure is managed primarily through
sourcing raw materials denominated in the same
currency. The Group has not considered it appropriate
to substantially hedge against currency risks through
forward exchange contracts upon consideration of the
currency risk involved and the cost of obtaining such
cover.

At 31 December 2022, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$4,457,000, higher
or lower (31 December 2021: post-tax loss for the
year would have been approximately HK$4,887,000,
lower or higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
differences on translation of RMB denominated net
payables of the group entities with HK$ as their
functional currency.

FERBHERME (E)

3 M¥ERERE

(a)

RAEERZERERAR o

Bt %5 B R 3=

AEBEBAZZREYBER
migER (BEINER K - A X
BEERRR) EERRERE
BExRR AKEZEEBERE
BEEFEINERMBZTARE
A BREFEREYAEEY
BRIRAIGEBKAIFZE o

(i) SMNERE
REBEHRINEXHEBAA
RETARE] BThkx
T ([ET) FHE - KEBD &
ERBBEAARE EBIR
EnitE REEREE
REBBEAEMEEFE K
SERNETHRARE (K
SEETEEZEEQFNY
REEH) ASNEEETE R
REAXRXZHNOERBEEN
B E A IMNEE R R -

HRETEXTHE  BE
EBHEE BTRkETETHR
BT K[ i B AN R B R
BEARE - ARBHLBIH
DEE =R 7838 ~T Fp B KT 2R 4 Y
SN & I AR A K A5

It B mL R B B IR A
HREEFHESRM T
BIE - REEMPREER
BRE RIS A RBRERNK
Kig AEERBTEEE
BERUINES DR EHE AR
EITREH )

RZFZZF+ZA=*+—
H:WBLH ARBER
F/#5% - i FrA H b
e NFEMRBIE S
A 45 18 00 =k 4> #94,457,000
BT (ZE=-—F+=A8
=+—H FEBRBEERE
R 0 X 38 N 494,887,000/%5
) EEHRRRBITAY
REERHNEETRERENA
RESFHER B B F 5 m
S| EhIE 5 ZFEFTER

R FFR

101



102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (R)
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3

(=)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2022, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the US$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$ 14,743,000, lower
or higher (31 December 2021: post-tax loss for the
year would have been approximately HK$7,686,000,
higher or lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
differences on translation of US$ denominated net
receivables of the group entities with RMB as their
functional currency.

Interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed with reputable
banks and financial institutions, which generate interest
income for the Group.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates
and lease liabilities expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. Details of the Group’s borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a
dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking
into consideration of refinancing, renewal of existing
positions, and alternative financing. Based on these
scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit of
a defined interest rate shift. For each simulation, the
same interest rate shift is used. The scenarios are run
only for assets and liabilities that represent the major
interest-bearing positions.

Based on the simulations performed, if there is a 100
basis-point shift, the post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$1,001,000, higher or
lower (year ended 31 December 2021: post-tax loss
would have been approximately HK$818,000, lower
or higher) mainly as a result of change in interest rates
on pledged bank deposit and borrowings at variable
interest rate (2021: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) Price risk
The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
and commodity price risk.

(iv)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposit, amount due from an associated
company, amounts due from joint ventures, as well as
credit exposures to trade and bills receivables and other
financial assets at amortised cost.

(1)

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing
basis.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers based
on their past repayment patterns, latest business
developments and other factors. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and bills
receivables falls within the recorded allowances.

The table below shows the credit limit and
balance of the five major debtors at 31 December
2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

@)

3 HXARERE@m

Bt 7 JEL B (Rl & (@)
(v) 1EEREE &)

(a)

Risk management (Continued) (1) [EREFE(4E)
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—s-= T
Counterparty Credit limit Utilised Credit limit Utilised
HES EERE EEA EERE A
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FERT FHIT FHET
A 65,000 64,023 44,000 43,941
B 44,000 43,084 21,000 5,238
C 45,000 43,047 30,000 28,606
D 37,000 34,861 38,000 36,388
E 31,000 30,482 37,000 36,068
F 10,000 9,399 40,000 39,660
G 10,000 8,250 31,000 30,575
Impairment of financial assets 2) ZHEERE
Trade and bills receivables, amount due from AEBEEERMZE
an associated company and amounts due from KWEZERREE &
joint ventures for sales of goods of the Group are W — F B & A A RIE
subject to the expected credit losses model. While K EWA & DRI -
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits BRTEHEEEEER
and other financial assets at amortised cost are FE-BHERReFE
also subject to the impairment requirements HE - 2EBRITERK
of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was VAR S B S5 K AR 51 BR 2
immaterial. HivemEETAEER
BN HRE LR E
SRRERTE D H
AR EBEBEBEM -
Trade and bills receivables, amount due from an JEW B ZIRARERE
associated company and amounts due from joint JEW — & 1 Bl
ventures REWKE EPFENE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified REEERAEEVBR
approach to measuring expected credit losses SR FEoSRET 2B
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for EEBEB 2 ET %
trade and bills receivables, amount due from an HEKESERRERE

associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures. The Group measures the expected credit
losses on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

@)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on individual
basis

The receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or with significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment. As at 31 December
2022, the balance of credit loss allowance in
respect of individually assessed receivables was
approximately HK$83,462,000 (31 December
2021: approximately HK$71,370,000).

The following table presents the gross carrying

3

FERBHERME (E)

B 7% L B B BB ()

() BMEEREZE @
(v) 1552k (&)
2) ZHEEREGE)
17 8 5l B £ 5 2 78 A
=B E7E
B3 B A0 IR B R B
sk I [B] FE Uk 3K T8 B X
GEEARBZER
8 A R GRIA - Tosk
BB B E B AR 1A o
R—_ZTBE-_—_F+=-H1
=+—H BZEMER
FEmERRERRZ
EEBRERBESRD
83,462,000 7T (= &
T+ zZA=1t—
H : #71,370,000/%&
JT) °

TREIRZZE=-—

amount and the credit loss allowance in respect EN T - —F+ =
of the individually assessed receivables as at 31 A=+—BERFHE
December 2022 and 2021: el G IE 2 AR B A
RIZEEBEE

2022 2021

—sE=-= T —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Gross carrying amount RESE 83,462 71,370

Credit loss allowance EEEERE (83,462) (71,370)

Credit net carrying amount EEREFE - -

RAEERZERERAR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBEHERRME

(%)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

@)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on collective
basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on the
credit risk characteristics and assessed collectively
for credit losses allowance. When measuring the
expected credit losses, the Group considered the
credit losses incurred in the past, and adjusted by
taking into consideration current conditions and
forward looking factors.

As at 31 December 2022, the balance of credit loss
allowance in respect of these collectively assessed
receivables was approximately HK$10,732,000 (31
December 2021: approximately HK$16,078,000)
based on expected credit loss rates up to 4.58%
(2021: 6.70%) applied on different groupings.

Impairment and reversal of impairment losses
on receivables are presented as “net impairment
losses on financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposit
and other financial assets at amortised cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposit and other
financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

v)

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
sufficient cash.

As at 31 December 2022, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group approximated HK$305,356,000 (31
December 2021: approximately HK$251,164,000).

The following tables analyse the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
values, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Specifically, as at 31 December 2022, for borrowings
which contained repayment on demand clauses which
could be exercised at the banks' sole discretion, the
balances had been reclassified as current liabilities.
The analysis shows the cash outflow based on earliest
period in which the Group can be required to pay, that
is if the lender were to invoke their unconditional rights
to call the loans with immediate effect (2021: same).

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

108

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MHEREE@
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIEKREZE@
(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) V) REEzZEE &)
Between Between
On  Lessthan 1and 2and Over
demand 1year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
152% 255F
REXEE 1ER pd: | 2 SENE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THT T T FHL
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZF
+ZA=t-H
Bank borrowings FITEE
~ principal portion ~KeHn 108,323 10 - - - 108,333
Other borrowings EfhfEE
— principal portion -Kx&H5 - 214 276 751 1,179 2,420
Lease labilities BERR - 5,574 3423 546 - 9,543
Trade payables ENESER - 168,318 - - - 168,318
Accruals and B BRAR
other payables At E - 94,075 - - - 94,075
Loans from non-controling REFEERER
interests a-¢ 17,486 - - - - 17,486
Dividends payable ERIRE - 191 - - - 191
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-f%
+ZA=t+-H
Bank borrowings FITEE
~ principal portion S ) 138,227 273 - - - 138,500
Other borrowings EffsE
~ principal portion -re#n - 106 228 944 1,570 2,848
Lease liabilities RERE - 3,991 2,9% 76 - 7,063
Trade payables ERERER - 178432 - - - 178432
Accruals and BT BRAR
other payables HipfElI5E - 88,562 - - - 88,562
Loans from non-controling REFERER
interests & 17,369 - - - - 17,369
Dividends payable JERIRE - 184 - - - 184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERBHERME (E)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) B 7% B B B ()
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) Bii5EkEEZE @
Liquidity risk (Continued) V) REEZEE &)
The table below analyses the borrowings of the Group TRIEZBRNEEHESHE
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining HEMB THBEITASE
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual DHEEMEBINABAAEANNE
maturity date without taking into consideration the B EhUEi RRERE
effect of repayment on demand clauses, while interest BIERTOTE  MFBERMRK
payments are computed using contractual rates. B ETE o
Between Between
Within 1and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5years 5years Total
122 2E5%
15/ A A SEMUL @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TER TER
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-ZF
TZA=t-H
Borrowings: g
- principal portion -K5¥5 61,450 23,067 25,057 1179 110,753
- interest portion —-ME#n 3722 1,997 1,188 35 6,942
65,172 25,064 26,245 1,214 117,695
As at 31 December 2021 R=B=-%
t=R=+-H
Borrowings: EE:
~ principal portion -Fe#n 64,231 30,843 44,704 1,570 141,348
~ interest portion -fE#n 1,743 1113 1,034 49 3,939
65,974 31,956 45,738 1,619 145,287

HIEFERIER AR AT ¢ —T - _FFR

109



110

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERMBHERRME (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEREE@
(b) Capital risk management (b) E€EEE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AEBNESEEEEREBEAE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern ERFEC SRR ESE VA
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits Ho /AR E KO R - [ E
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital FREEMESZEAEANTGE I
structure to reduce the cost of capital. HEFERENERAEBUREE 2
B o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group EBHENAREALEE  KAEE
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, AREEABRIMNTREMNKRE S
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets H RBEREEES BITHR
to reduce debt. B E LUK ETS -
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. AREBNAEEABRERE
This ratio is calculated as net debt (borrowings less cash BN o ﬁttt_?_&,?ﬁﬁ%(%fé?m%
and cash equivalents) divided by total equity. Management HENESESEEE)GIAEREDS
considers a gearing ratio of not more than 30% as TE-EEERAAENEESRA
reasonable. B ERETEN30% °
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-C= —ET-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Borrowings gE 110,753 141,348
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BB eRReEBEIER (305,356) (251,164)
Net Cash FHIRS (194,603) (109,816)
Total equity Mg 1,131,481 1,094,446
Gearing ratio BEEAMFELE N/A 71 F N/A 1~
Surplus cash held by the operating entities over the KEERERELEELELEIE

requirement for working capital management are transferred
to interest bearing current accounts and time deposits, with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall liquidity position.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group maintains cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$305,356,000 (31 December
2021: approximately HK$251,164,000) that are expected to
be readily available to meet the cash outflows of its financial
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposit, trade and bills receivables, other financial
assets at amortised cost, amount due from an associated
company, amounts due from joint ventures, current portion
of borrowings, trade payables, dividends payable, accruals
and other payables, and loans from non-controlling interests,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. The
non-current portion of other borrowings approximates their
fair values as the impact of discount is not significant. Lease
liabilities are initially measured on a present value basis by
discounting the lease payments to net present value using the
entities’ incremental borrowing rate.

See Note 8 for disclosures of investment property that is
measured at fair value at 31 December 2022.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Assessment of the expected credit losses of trade
and bills receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivables based on assumption about risk of default and expected
credit loss rate (Note 3(a)(iv)). The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculations based on the credit losses incurred in the past, current
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the balance sheet
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PEDN

Fip

(=)

MEmEAME (F)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Board. The Board reviews the Group’s internal reports in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. The Board has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading
of hospitality supplies products (“Hospitality Supplies Business”),
trading of operating supplies and equipment (“OS&E Business”),
and manufacturing and trading of health care and hygienic
products (“Health Care and Hygienic Products Business”). From
a geographical perspective, the Board assesses the performance
based on the Group’s revenue by geographical location in which
the customer is located. Altogether, the Group has three reporting
segments: (i) Hospitality Supplies Business; (ii) OS&E Business; and (iii)
Health Care and Hygienic Products Business.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of profit/(loss) before income tax, impairment
of goodwill, share of profit/(loss) of an associated company, share
of loss of a joint venture and fair value gain on an investment

property.

Information provided to the Board is measured in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. Depreciation and amortisation charges are apportioned with
reference to respective segment revenue from external customers.
Assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated by reference to the
principal markets in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE M %R R ME (R

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 o¥ERm

Geographical (Continued) & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of the Group HEeE—_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHF
was recognised at a point in time and no sales derived from a single [ AREB /WA RER (@R 208
customer which exceeded 10% of the revenue of the Group (for RoBEREE —FEHNEEHAER
the year ended 31 December 2021: same). WABI0%NA E(BE-_T - —F+=

A=t—HILFE : EF) -

For the year ended 31 December 2022, additions to non-current HEeE—_ZT-—_F+-_A=+—HLHF
assets comprise additions to right-of-use assets, property, plant and B ERBDEEANERIEANBEFEHESE
equipment, intangible assets and other non-current assets (for the E-YW¥E BMELRE BEFEEERHE
year ended 31 December 2021: same). WIERBEE (HE_T_—F+_A

=t—BLEFE:8R) -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 VX -BERRKE
Leasehold Motor Fumiture Computer Plantand  Construction
Land Buildings  improvements vehides — and fixtures equipment machinery In progress Total

i) BT BENERE nE KARKE  EMRE RRERRE  RRIR it
HCYOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO0D HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOMO  HKSOOD
ThR TR ThR TR ThR TER ThR TR T

At1 January 2021 RZB=-&
-A-H
Cost A 17,559 361,757 142,036 26,68 20,001 18,867 299,515 4,701 891,118
Accumulgted depreciationand  E3fHTE
impairment R - (120.283) (91,306) (23229 (17,114 (18.468) (169,791) - (440,147)
Net book amount FHFE 17,55 21,514 50,730 3457 2881 39 129,724 4,701 450971

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-F=-F

tZAZT-RALEE
Opening net book amount EYEETE 17559 W51 50,730 3057 2887 399 1074 4701 150971
Addiions e - - 903 2,040 3 10 12731 075 £50M
Transfer &y - 4475 17403 - - - - (21878 -
Disposals (Note 33(b) L& a3 - - - - B) - (1,659) - (1,662
Depreciation (Vote 29) WEin) - (18.339) (9,549) 223) (876) (692 (24363 - (56,047)
Bichange diferences EiZE 104 2776 1,152 %5 6 - 255 16 6,59
Closing netbookamount ~ EXREEFE 17663 230430 677 3.9 21 108 118888 3564 445,12
At 31 December 2021 RZB--£

t2R=t-A
Cost i 17663 M 170563 8424 19,995 19,487 31268 3564 944,547
Accumulated depreciationand ~ Z3fHE

impairment R - (41799 (101,791) (25130 (17584) (19319 (193740 - (499,421)

Net book amount RABE 17663 230430 677 3.9 20 108 118888 3564 445,12

BRI AR AR ¢ —T - —HFFR 117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 6 1% - BB R 324 a0

Leasehold Motor Furniture ~ Computer Plantand  Construction
Land Buildings improvements vehicles and fixtures  equipment  machinery in progress Total
1 B HENERE RE BEREE  EMRE HERMS  £RIR it

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TER TER TER TER TET TER TET TER TER

Year ended 31 December ~ HZE-E-2f

2002 tZA=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount  EYETFHE 17,663 230430 68,772 3,290 2411 108 118,888 3,564 445,126
Additions RE - 1,94 2,950 458 431 404 17,078 5,348 28,610
Transfer g% - 2,132 5,746 - - - - (7.878) -
Disposals (Note 33(b)) HE Wit - - - (109) () - (195) - (309)
Depreciation (Note 25) & W13 - (18,352) (10,633) (1311) (782) (498) (23,712) - (55,288)
Exchange differences EXzE 25 (4,163) (2,689) 143 (144) 9 (5,119) (231) (12,175)
Closing net book amount ~ EREEFE 17,688 211,988 64,146 24711 191 3 106,940 797 405,964
At 31 December 2022 HZBIZE
tZh=t-8
Cost ik 1768 36348 169,851 2,51 19,110 18538 294,776 9 91760
Accumulated depreciation ZiNE
and impairment Riifa - (151498) (105705 (25083) (17,199 (18515 (187,836) - (505,79)
Net book amount RERE 17,688 211,988 64,146 2,41 1,911 3 106,940 197 405,964
Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has AEENYE BERREBEHFTEDR
been charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive REEEWERNE  FFBOT
income as follows:
2022 2021
—E-= B —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Cost of sales SHE KA 42,071 41,489
Distribution costs AR 2,663 2,922
Administrative expenses TR 10,554 11,636
55,288 56,047
As at 31 December 2022, certain property, plant and equipment RZTEZZ—F+=ZA=+—H 8K
with aggregate net carrying value of approximately HK$ 18,960,000 T /5 {8 4918,960,0008 T (ZF = —F
(31 December 2021: HK$21,245,000) were pledged as securities + A =+—H:21,245,000% 7T) Z
for banking facilities of the Group (Note 21). ETYE BERRETUER ER

AEBIRITRE 2 R (FE21) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7 RIGHT-OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts
related to leases:

FERBHERME (E)

ERAEEEREERR
(@ REEEERBERBEIN

T8

BAEEERABRBRTYHBEE
BN eE

2022 2021
—_sE-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leased office premises HERAEME 84,201 92,006
Leased factory buildings HEMEET 16,926 14,077
Leased warehouse HERE 28 152
101,155 106,235

Lease liabilities HEAE

Current mE 5,166 3,483
Non-current FETRED 3,834 2,395
9,000 5,878

During the year ended 31 December 2022, additions
to the right-of-use assets amounted to approximately
HK$9,463,000 (year ended 31 December 2021: approximately
HK$1,134,000), were recognised by the Group in the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, certain right-of-use assets with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$27,860,000
were pledged as securities for banking facilities of the Group
(31 December 2021: approximately HK$29,077,000) (Note
21).

REEZZE_—_F+=_A=+—
ALEHFE EERANETEEHER
AU BRERNABEETREEE
479,463,000 T (BHE -T2 = —
F+-_AZt+—HLEFE 8
1,134,000/ 7T) °

RZEZF+=ZA=+—H8"
£ T 428k 18 427,860,000/ 7T
(ZBEZ—F+=ZA=+—8: %
29,077,000 L) MEAEEED
EREARNEBRITRERIKE
m (FzE21) ©

HIEFERIER AR AT ¢ —T - _FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
l'/T\ = Eﬁﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁuf (n,\)

7 RIGHT-OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7

(Continued)

FAREEREES S @

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

b) RGEE2EHBREREIN

statement of comprehensive income -]
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows seErHNERERTIERAE
the following amounts relating to leases: HEE S
2022 2021
—B-- k- Sk S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE
Leased office premises HERANEME 3,759 3,998
Leased factory buildings HEREETF 5,221 4,595
Leased warehouse HERE 105 124
9,085 8,717
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABNERX
(Note 28) (Htzt28) 590 435
Other lease expenses (Note 25) Hib &R (#fit25) 5,907 6,477

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total cash
outflows for leases of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$12,263,000 (year ended 31 December 2021:
approximately HK$12,175,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various land, offices and warehouses. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 50 years,
which do not contain any extension options.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

HE-_ET-_—_F#+-_A=+—H
EFEE AEERBEENBES R
4855 412,263,000 7T (B E =
B+ -_A=+—HIFE:
#912,175,000/8 7T) o

ARBZAREDRESED
e

AEEHEZHELH BAE
RE-BHEH—RBIES0FH
B E HR - X T 8 35 a4 B
B

HEGRFOUEBHE LEEX
T8~ R B AR TR B AR £ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me 8RR M (R

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 8 WREWF

2022 2021
—s=-= —T-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January n—H—H 15,911 15,451
Revaluation gain EXElE 1,974 -
Exchange differences ME W R (1,247) 460
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 16,638 15,911

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated L TNREERGE 2 EKERIER

statement of comprehensive income:

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$/000

FET FHET

Rental income (Note 26) M WA (F:226) 134 351

Direct operating expenses arising from an REEEMERBAZ—IE

investment property that generates rental WEYE L EREBRAY

income (Note 25) (H17t25) 36 57

(@) Independent valuation of the Group’s investment property (a) AEBEIEEWMED B LER S W

was performed by the valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, to
determine the fair value of the investment property as at 31
December 2022 and 2021. The following table analyses the
investment property carried at fair value.

EAETEERBRARET
BYHE UWEBETREVER=
T _FR-_FEZ—F+=A
Zt—HZAFE . TRIHIK
N AR ZIEEMERTEDHT ©

Fair value hierarchy

NP EEBR

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2022 using
R-E-_—_f+=-A=+—H
ATEFTE (RUTHEEL)

Quoted price Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
=i B8 HEEER HMWEER BEENAA
FERMSENRE TEERBAYRE SEBARE
(B—#) (B=4) (=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FTHET
Recurring fair value LEERTE
measurements: =
Investment property B - 16,638 -
EEEERERAT o —T-—FF®, 121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (R)

=)
)

8

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 8 KBEWHEwmw
(@)  (Continued) (a) (#&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEER @

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2021 using
RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H
ANEEE (RUATREBEELR)

Quoted price Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
1A HRAEERE HMEZEK FEEHAA
EETMISRmE TEREARE BRGARE
(B—#H) (B=#H) (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET
Recurring fair value LEEQTE
measurements: =
Investment property WEYE - 15,911 -

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year (year

ended 31 December 2021: same).

Level 2 fair values of completed investment properties have
been generally derived using the sales comparison approach.
Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation approach
is price per square feet. The higher the price per square feet,

the higher the fair value.

Details of the investment property:

The investment property of the Group are leased to the
tenant under operating lease with fixed monthly rental
receivable and the Group closely monitors the risk associated
with its right retains in the underlying asset.

Address of investment property

REME

Existing use

BRIAR

AEBZHRERNERER 2 %5
HRBEREEE BERAF
BEELAzEBANEL - HNFR -
F— - R-FzEBREER (H
E-FE-_—F+-A=+—HL
FE AERD) -

BERIREMEZE KRN FE
—MRIASHE L BORF H » B3I 7]
BLBMENHEERARY X
RRETZRZNERTUAAE -
HEFEREENB ABER
FFHTRONER R TFEEESF
77 REGEE _EFHgmm o

BEMRZFHE

AEBZRENEZGABTERE
WHengeEHEHEREAFPEL -
AEBEZOEREBEEMRE
EANERERR -

Tenure

=R

Room 101, Chuntian Garden,
No. 6, Lane 999, Loushanguan
Road, Changning District,
Shanghai City, the PRC

HE EETRERELFEKIE
RERTERI0E

31 December 2022: Rental

(31 December 2021: same)

T+ -A=+—H: Mg

(ZZ2=—%+=H
=+—8: 8[)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (cContinued) 8

(c) At 31 December 2022, the future aggregate minimum lease
receipts under non-cancellable operating lease of the investment
property not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements, which are receivable by the Group as follows:

FERBHERME (E)

KREWE @)
© R-TE-—F#+-A=+—8"
AEEIRERAFHIEE LY

EHEZBERAKSERERA
R CRRNFRA M RRTER) 1

T
2022 2021
=SHISS —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Within one year —FR - 382
Later than one year but no later BR—F
than 5 years BRNEROF - 223
- 605
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 BHEREBLEE
(a) Goodwill (a) BHE
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
At 1 January n—A—H 5,390 10,633
Impairment of goodwill FERE - (4,759)
Exchange differences MW R 8 (484)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 5,398 5,390
Goodwill is allocated to the respective groups of CGUs, HEASTREHABARN I ESES
which represent the lowest level within the Group at which B AIASEEAGABEERM
the relevant goodwill is monitored for internal management SEREE Y HEKF (TRALK
purposes, and not larger than an operating segment. BOER) o

As at 31 December 2022, goodwill of approximately
HK$5,398,000 (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$5,390,000) is attributable to the cash-generating unit
("CGU") for the Group's business in Cambodia.

%

—E-_—_F+=-R=+—8"
g 2 495,398,000 (=& = —
+=—A=+—H : 45,390,000/
T REAREBZRIGEERZ
REEEBENM([REEEHM]) -

BRIEBRIERR AR A o T _HFFW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERMBHERRME (F)

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Goodwill (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the prolonged
unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic and the associated
anti-epidemic measures extended following the fifth wave
of COVID-19 infections in late 2021 had further delayed the
recovery in the tourism industry in Japan. The prolonged
pandemic has caused changes in consumer behavior,
with more customers shifting to e-commerce platform.
In view of the economic performance of the CGU for the
Group's business in Japan which was worse than expected,
management carried out the impairment assessment for the
CGU by determining the recoverable amount based on the
higher of fair value less cost of disposal (“FVLCD") derived
from market search and value-in-use calculation using cash
flow projections from financial budgets covering a period
of 5 years approved by senior management. As a result, an
impairment loss on the goodwill attributable to CGU of the
Group's business in Japan of HK$4,759,000 was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Impairment test of goodwill arising from the business
combinations in Cambodia and Japan

Independent valuation of the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs was performed by the an independent professionally
qualified valuer.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation. The calculation uses pre-tax cash
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Thereafter, the cash
flows are extrapolated using the terminal growth rate not
exceeding the long-term average growth rate of the countries
in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions are as follows:

9 BEREFEE®

(a)

BE @)

Bz —4F+-_AF=+—H
W& E - BIFTAR R ACOVID-19K 7
THREEA  UERR-ZZE-—FK
) 55 TR COVID-19/% 2+ 14 FiE & K 4
BAFH R BE - i — 2P RERR B AN R E
EMEESK - -BABANEBE
BEEBTABRE\ BEZ2EFH
HEAETAFTYE BRAEE
AAEBHIRSEEBMNHNEER
BHNEY EEESBEReRE
TR (RKiEeSREREMLERS
SEHMMBKESE) YRES
BERSBMEHEZAFERDERK
(AFERLERA])) BEREEAE
MENBRSEETCAI KD SR #
It IR & BEE A BB AL TR E RS ©
Eitt  NEBBAEBHRESES
BHNEHEBEREBEZE-_ZE_—F
ToA=+—BHUEFERERRES
$84,759,0005 7T °

RIGZER AR E HITEL
B 18R 35
ReELEBEM 2T KRESREE M
BYEEABRMGEMETEY
R

ReELEMZ I ROEREIR
EREEAETEAEE - MEtES
EEATAR SRR ERE R
ERRERLFHROPBBEE M
8o AFHRNRSRERTEL
ReELENKEMEBRREN
FHERRNREERERES -

TERKRWOT
Operation
Operation in Cambodia in Japan
RRBEZEE REFXZEE
2022 2021 2021
—E-= —E-—%F —E-—%F

Pre-tax discount rate BATITIR =X

Compound annual growth rate WAEEFERX
of revenue

Terminal growth rate 4R 1 R R

25.5% 21.7% 25.1%
12.9% 12.9% 12.5%
2.0% 2.0% 1.0%

The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use
exceeded carrying value as at 31 December 2022. A decrease
in compound annual growth rate of revenue by 7.4% (2021:
4.6%) would remove the remaining headroom for the CGU
of the Group operation in Cambodia.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE M %R R ME (R

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9 BENEFEE @
(b) Intangible assets (b) BEEEE
Investment
in club Software ~ Operating
Trademarks debenture licences licence Total
BE SFEFRE BHBYE megR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THL THBT
At 1 January 2021 R=B=-£-8-R
Cost A 1,772 968 10,719 1728 15,187
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZHEELEE (1,623) (968) (10,095) (1,728) (14,414)
Net hook amount REFE 149 - 624 - 773
Year ended 31 December 2021 Bz-3--F%
TZA=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 149 - 624 - 773
Additions NE - - 452 - 452
Amortisation (Note 25) B (H5) (44) - (809) - (853)
Bxchange differences ENER B) - - - B)
Closing net hook amount EXRETE 102 - 267 - 369
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-F+ZA=1-H
Cost R 1770 9%8 11,171 1728 15,637
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  Z:t & HRFE (1,668) (968) (10,904) (1,728) (15,268)
Net book amount REFE 102 - 267 - 369
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-3-CE1CR
Z+-HLEEE
Opening net book amount ENREE 102 - 267 - 369
Additions AE - - 805 - 805
Amortisation (Note 25) B (i2s) (34) - (653) - (687)
Exchange differences EHER @ - - - @
Closing net book amount EXBEEE 64 . 419 - 483
At 31 December 2022 R=BZZ#+=A=1-H
Cost B 1,768 968 11,976 - 14,712
Accumulated amortisation and impairment SHEELEE (1,704) (968) (11,557) - (14,229)
Net hook amount REFE 64 - 419 - 483
AEEEERAERAT o —T- _FER 125
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9 FBEEREEEE @)
(b) Intangible assets (Continued) (b) BEEE @)
Amortisation of the Group's intangible assets have been REBERTEEENHFEDINES
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive ZEWEFRNG - FFEET ¢
income as follows:
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Distribution costs P2l =[P 458 462
Administrative expenses THAX 229 391
687 853
10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 10 ELEFREH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the
same fiscal authority. The offsetting amounts are as follows:

BERETEARANITEMNGIHRIEE
EEHTEE EEE  MELHEFR
WK F— R - A IEEMSHR

BEHEAEEEEE - HESHENOT
2022 2021
—B2-= —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEME E 3,205 3,771
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMEREE (5.602) (5,608)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net RIEMSRAETE (2,397) (1,837)
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as EEFTERER S8 FHEUT -
follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= —EZ—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January m—R—H (1,837) (2,709)
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 30) Rz AR (M17730) (488) 859
Exchange differences ME W R (72) 13
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (2,397) (1,837)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

FERBHERME (E)

10 EZERMBH @

TEBRF — D% AR R E £ K R

EAREBMER - FREEAEBEE
RABZEBMT :

EEFEHREAE

Revaluation of ~ Additions due

Capitalisation

Accelerated tax  aninvestment  to business of right-of-use
depreciation property  combination assets Total
—-BRE RE%  FREEE

MERERE NEER  AfMRE -¢:X(4 @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL T THEL THL TAL
At 1 January 2021 R-B--%-A-H (253) (1,948) (1,902) (1,309 (5,412)
Recognised in profit or loss RNBRENER (1,09) - 770 185 (141)
Exchange differences ERZES 508 (516) 21) (26) (55)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--E+-fA=+-8 (841) (2,464) (1,153) (1,150) (5,608)
Recognised in profit or loss NEEAER 910 (494) 362 (909) (131)
Exchange differences ERES (69) 97 (5) 114 137
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZ£+ZA=1+-H - (2,861) (79) (1,945) (5,602)

Deferred income tax assets ELEFESHEE
Decelerated  Capitalisation
tax of lease

depreciation liabilities Tax losses Total

REBETE HEREER(L FIEER it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET TAT FHT FHL

At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—-%—H—H 1,378 1,325 - 2,703
Recognised in profit or loss #1825 AR 850 (179) 329 1,000

Exchange differences [EHZE=E 43 25 - 68

At31December2021 RZZE-—-F+=-HA=+—H 2,271 117 329 3,771
Recognised in profit or loss 718 7 N R (1,092) 1,064 (329) (357)
Exchange differences fE 5 =5 (95) (114) - (209)

At31December2022 R=-Z--F+-H=+—H 1,084 2,121 - 3,205

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$12,679,000
as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$11,135,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the remittance of earnings of PRC
subsidiaries. The related unremitted earnings totaled approximately
HK$253,589,000 as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
approximately HK$222,705,000), and the Group does not intend to
remit these unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiary to the

Company in the foreseeable future.

RAEERZERERAR o

R-EBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H ' x5H
It 2R 5t 0 B F B A B A B S B ) A e A
BT EREEATS R A E4912,679,000
BL(ZEZ—F+A=+—H8:4
11,135,000 ) cR T —_F +=
A=+—H HBEAELAEFNEGELD
253,589,000 L (ZE=—F+=H
=+—8 : #222,705,000/87T) * kAL
EESRA RARREREBENBA R
it EREDAFELEAAR -

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
l'/T\ = Eﬁﬁ#&%ﬁﬁuf (AA)

11

INVENTORIES 11 F&
2022 2021
—E-— —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R K 92,223 106,696
Work in progress T8 12,542 18,458
Finished goods BIAK G 200,080 202,751
304,845 327,905
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories W BREFERE (44,669) (61,621)
Inventories, net FE%5E 260,176 266,284

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year
amounted to approximately HK$948,165,000 (year ended 31
December 2021: approximately HK$778,228,000).

Direct written off of and reversal of provision made for obsolete
inventories for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately HK$3,303,000 (2021: approximately HK$3,523,000)
and approximately HK$7,405,000 (2021: provision made for
obsolete inventories amounted to approximately HK$19,729,000)
respectively. These were recognised as an expense and included
in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

AEEBHFABERANFEERAYD
948,165,000 T (BE T ——F+ A
=+—HIFE : £9778,228,000/87T) °

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHF
E HEEMELEREFETRENE
| 9 B 493,303,000 T (- T ——
 : 493,523,000/ 7T) K %97,405,0007%
T(ZEZ—F R EFEIREMB
4919,729,000/87T) ° WL EER AR -
Wt Ara 2 EKERP A HERA] -

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 12 ERESRAKREE
2022 2021
=F== —F-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables B E 5 8RR 635,667 596,479
Bills receivables FEW =8 17,362 19,387
653,029 615,866
Less: provision for impairment of receivables & : J& U 3 I8 (8 1 (94,194) (87,448)
Trade and bills receivables, net JEWE SRR R EEF5E 558,835 528,418

The credit period granted by the Group ranges from 15 days to 120
days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE M %R R ME (R

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 12 EREZRIAREE @)

Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables by invoice date is as

follows:

FEWE 5 Bk RIE L% R B IR

DHTIR

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHET
1-30 days 1£30H 229,694 271,278
31-60 days 31£60H 121,733 96,091
61-90 days 61%£90H 70,779 79,147
91-180 days 912 180H 118,273 93,362
Over 180 days 1808 A £ 112,550 75,988
653,029 615,866
2022 2021
—s=-= —TE -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Denominated in: BATE®EIE :
- RMB — AR 305,664 323,418
- US$ —%7T 278,338 239,902
- HK$ — BT 34,518 31,551
- Other currencies —H i T 34,509 20,995
653,029 615,866

The fair value of trade and bills receivables, are as follows:

EUEZEFERENRFEDT

2022 2021

—s=-= —TE -4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Trade and bills receivables FEUWE ZERF R EE 558,835 528,418

As at 31 December 2022, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$94,194,000 (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$87,448,000) are impaired and have been provided for. See
Note 3(a)(iv) for information about how impairment losses are
calculated. Net impairment losses on trade and bills receivables are
presented as “net impairment losses on financial assets” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously impaired and provided for are
credited in profit or loss. Receivables for which an impairment
provision was recognised are written off against the provision when
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. As at 31
December 2022, the individually impaired trade and bills receivables
mainly represent receivables of approximately HK$64,092,000
(31 December 2021: approximately HK$56,344,000) from PRC
customers which have remained long overdue and management
considered the recoverability is remote.

N-ZZE_—E+-A=+—0 " EKSEZ
S5 BRRN ZE #994,194,0008 ¢ (==
——%F+=ZHA=+—H : 487,448,000
B EHBERERELBE - 5@t
BEREEENERBEL2BME3@) ) °
EWESEREEEZRESEFHE
REEE2EURREN AR EER
BEEBFRE] - BER W E LA B REN
SHRBENRIES B AEE - WTERE
FWEIEEINE S - BIE RIRERED
JEUGRIB A BB SE - RZT ==
+ZA=+—8 " @7 L3R RENEK
BEREEEFEERRFTEEFE
HiE A HYFRIE 464,092,000/ ¢ (R ==
——%+=-H=+—H : 456,344,000
Bor) BERER AR UL ERM -

HIEFERIER AR AT ¢ —T - _FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

13

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and bills

receivables are as follows:

12 EREZRIAREE @)

EUEZEFRZENRERENES
L

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

At 1 January n—H—H 87,448 40,328

Net provision for impairment of trade and FREKE FHER

bills receivables recognised during the year BB EREFE 15,347 47,983
Write-off of provision for impairment MEHEWE 5 RRRERD

of trade and bills receivables AR E (3.473) (2,180)

Exchange differences P 3 =5 (5,128) 1,317

At 31 December W+—R=+—H 94,194 87,448

The creation and release of provision for impairment of trade and
bills receivables have been included in the net impairment losses
on financial assets in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally
written off when there is no expectation of recovery.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is
the fair values of trade and bills receivables disclosed above.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATED
COMPANY

The amount represents trade receivables from an associated
company. The carrying value of the amount approximates its
fair value. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and mainly
denominated in HK$. The credit period granted is 90 days. The
ageing analysis of amount by invoice date is as follows:

13

FEWE 5 R R R BB E BB R &
BREFAREEERERAZERE
BB 35 - st ABRBIR P HER
— AR TR A A & Uk (o] B A 8N o

REEENRSEERRI EXMKE
MEREZERRRENATE -

FE iy — BBt E X T RIA

ZRER/ER—HBERAFNE SR
Mo KA REEREE R FERES -
AZSRERM BN E R EZNETE
B -BETHNEEHR/OB - REZAH
ZHIRE DTN

2022 2021

—=E—_= —E-—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

1-30 days 1230H 2,682 1,485
31-60 days 31260H - 496
61-90 days 61290H - 2
Over 90 days 90H M E 166 355
2,848 2,338

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

FERBHEXRME (A

14 RBERAT IR Etb £ B

COST BE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Current: EE -

Deposits e 1,723 1,512
Other receivables H b U 3R T8 12,378 14,238
14,101 15,750

Non-current: JERED
Long-term deposits REES 25 132
14,126 15,882

The carrying value of the amount approximates its fair value.

SRR EEEREEAFEMEE -

2022 2021
—sE-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Denominated in: BATEEEIE
- RMB — AR®& 8,201 8,164
- US$ — £ 5,314 6,439
- HK$ — BT 205 627
— Other currencies —HEE 406 652
14,126 15,882
15 OTHER ASSETS 15 HttEE
2022 2021
—s=-= —TE-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current; mE
Prepayments T RRIR 18,429 22,504
Others HAt 31,976 34,182
50,405 56,686
Non-current: FERED
Prepayments TEfT5RIE 6,684 11,510
57,089 68,196
EEEERERAT o« —T - —FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

16 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

16 SIEHARITER

2022 2021

—E-— —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Pledged bank deposit DHEFRITER 11,717 11,689

As at 31 December 2022, a bank deposit of US$1,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,717,000) (as at 31 December
2021: US$1,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,689,000))
was pledged as collateral for the grant of letter of banking facility in
Hong Kong.

R-E-_—_F+=-A=+—8"
1,500,000 Jt (48 & 7 4911,717,0007%
L) (RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8":
1,500,000 7T (48 & 7 £911,689,000/%
L)) Z —HEBITEREIEABBRITE
ERZIER -

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 BekBEEEEER

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cash at banks and on hand RITHEHERE 264,143 251,164

Short-term bank deposits (original maturities 48 BA$R1T 73 (REEIH L%
of less than three months) =®A) 41,213 -
305,356 251,164

Denominated in: BT EEIE

- US$ —-%T 126,711 73,222
- HK$ BT 77,537 60,102
- RMB - AR¥ 67,404 88,252
— Euro —BT 15,502 13,355
— Other currencies —HipE# 18,202 16,233
305,356 251,164

The Group’s cash and bank balances with banks in the PRC
and India as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$67,253,000 (as at 31 December 2021: approximately
HK$89,425,000) and approximately HK$2,363,000 (as at 31
December 2021: approximately HK$386,000) respectively, where
the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE M %R R ME (R

18 RESERVES 18 f#f&
Other reserves HihfE
Share-based
Statutory ~ Compensation Exchange Retained
Merger reserve  reserve fund Reserve  Other Reserves Reserves eamings Total
| O URRER \ \
At AERBE  MMERE AR BEXRR  REEN Ch

HKY000  HKFO00  HK000  HKS000  HKFOOD  HK000  HKS'000
T TR T Tin TiET ThEL TR

Balance at 1 January 2021 RZB=-%

-B-Athgs 61,510 3728 17,829 5233 37,758 463,769 619,827
Comprehensive loss 2EFR
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - (93,535) (93,535)
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2E %
Currengy translation differences ~ EMTEEE - - - - 10,690 - 10,690
Total comprehensive income/ ~ 2EKE / (H8)

(loss) Ex - - - - 10,690 (93,535) (82,845)
Appropriation B3 - 14 - - - (14) -
Final dividend relating to 2020 “ECEREY

RERE - - - - - (10933) (10933)
Lapse of share ptions BREENR - - (17,706) - - 17,706 -
Balance at 31 December 2021~ W=B=-%+27

=t-Bi&R 61510 3742 13 5233 48,448 376993 526,049
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZB-Zf

o CA-RbES L Bl .M s B 3633 5604

Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year AEEEF - - - - - 75,511 75,51
Other comprehensive loss A2 ERE
Currency translation differences ~ SHITEZE - - - - (25,597) - (25,597)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ 20 (F8) /i

income i T o T S L N L. L
final dividend relating to 2021 “E5-EFY

(Note 32) RERE (Hitz) - -

- - - (7,238) (7,238)
Lapse of share options BRESN - - (13) - - 13 -

Balance at 31 December 2022 ~ W-B-—£+-§
=t-RAiEs 61,510 33,742 - 5,233 22,851 445,389 568,725
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PEDN

Fip

18

19

MEmEAME (F)

RESERVES (continued)

Other reserves (Continued)

Nature and purpose

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
cost of investments in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share
capital and share premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from
the application of merger accounting in consolidating the financial
information of the affected entities.

Statutory reserve fund

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies
are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the
fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses
or to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that
such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’
registered capital.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve is used to recognise the
grant date fair value of options issued to employees but not
exercised (Note 19).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(a) Share options

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
share options were exercised. 562,000 share options were
lapsed on 4 September 2022 (year ended 31 December 2021:
2,846,000 share options were lapsed on 9 September 2021).
As at 31 December 2022, no share options were outstanding
(31 December 2021: 562,000 share options were outstanding
and all of them were exercisable).

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERBHERME (E)

On 23 September 2016, the Company has adopted the
Scheme, to (i) recognise the contributions by employees,
directors, consultants or advisers of or to the Group (the
“Eligible Persons”); and (ii) offer suitable incentives to attract
and retain targeted talents and personnel for the continuance
of operations and future development of the Group. Subject
to the rules as set under the Scheme, the Board may at its
absolute discretion to elect any Eligible Persons to participate
in the Scheme (the “Selected Persons”) and to award the
Company’s shares (the “Awarded Shares”) to these Selected
Persons, subject to vesting conditions, if any. These Awarded
Shares will be transferred to the Selected Persons upon their
fulfillment of all relevant vesting conditions.

RAEERZERERAR o

19 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION 19 RGNS @
(Continued)
(a) Share options (Continued) (a) B @\
As all the share options were fully vested, no share-based HRTEBREYEREEFE -
payment expense was recognised during the year ended 31 WEE—_ZT - —E-—%F
December 2022 and 2021, TZA=T-BLEFEIEER
ARR D ST RTEIBA X o
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and MARTHERE 2 SB NEHEA
their related exercise prices are as follows: TEEZHET :
2022 2021
—E-C —T-—F
Average Average Number
exercise pricec  Number of exercise price of share
in HK$ share options in HK$ options
per share (thousands) per share  (thousands)
BRUEBT BB
TEZFE BREZE FEZEYE BREHE
TEE (F1) 71018 (Tt
At 1 January R—HA—8 0.62 562 0.62 3,408
Lapsed e 0.62 (562) 0.62 (2,846)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H - - 0.62 562
(b) Shares award (b) 1D EER

RZE—RNFNLAZ+=H &R
B M2 LAG)E EAREE W
B8 &% FWAZRER(EE
BATDFIERRER : K2
HEREARSIREBEBERAS
RABUNBASEFELE 13
BARKR - ZRAFTEIFTEHRA - £
Fen2ERBHRETRNEER
AT28E ([BEAL]D KA
I FERA TR AR R ([48
BARR])) - EESTEB RN (1
B) WEEBRMDIGNFTEIER
FERERTTREEEEEAL -

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

19 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION 19 RO @
(Continued)

(b) Shares award (Continued)

(b) M1 32 E (@)

In connection with the implementation of the Scheme, the
Group has signed a trust deed with an independent third
party to act as the trustee (the “Trustee”) to hold certain
shares on behalf of the Group and the Selected Persons
before these Awarded Shares are granted and/or vested.
The Group may from time to time instruct the Trustee to
purchase the Company’s shares from the market on the Stock
Exchange and to hold them in trust for the benefit of the
Selected Persons.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 5,000,000
shares (year ended 31 December 2021: Nil) were purchased
on the Stock Exchange at a consideration of approximately
HK$2,145,000 (year ended 31 December 2021: Nil) by the
Trustee on behalf of the Group. No shares were granted to
Eligible Persons under the Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

RHITEEME  AKEE 8
YE=ZTNETRERNER D
R/ RFBA  AERRRAEE R
BEALIRFAURERNDOZTEA
([ZFEAD BFEERE - A%E
A RRETERAEBRAMS
BEARERD - WAREALF
s AMERE A B AR -

BHE-_ZT-_—F#+_-_A=+—H
IEFE - ZRABEREAEBUR
B 42,145,000 T R B X P B
5,000,0008% ik (B E — T ——4F
+TZA=t—BLFE: &) - B
EE - FR T —F+=
RA=+—RILFE  $HERGRE

HEIMARRALRE -

20 SHARE CAPITAL 20 BRA
Number of
shares HK$'000
i 1n 21 B FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRO.IETHERR
Authorised: VETE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R=B=-%-A—-H-
and 31 December 2022 —E-F+ZA=+-HEK
—E-__F+=-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BREITRARE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R=-ZB--%—-HF—-H"
and 31 December 2022 ZEZ-f+ZA=1+—-HK
—E-_-_%#+-HB=+—H 734,262,697 7,343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERBHERME (E)

21 BORROWINGS 21 BE&
2022 2021
—E-— —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Non-current: FEmE
Secured other borrowings without WEIRBRERIERZ
repayable on demand clause EEAHMEE 2,206 2,742
Current: TR
Secured bank borrowings with repayable BEEREREZIERZ
on demand clauses BB ITEE 108,323 138,227
Secured bank borrowings without WERERKERERZ
repayable on demand clauses BEMIBITEER 10 273
Secured other borrowings without WEIREKEBIERZ
repayable on demand clause BEEAHMEE 214 106
e 108,547 138606
110,753 141,348
The borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: BUTEBSEZEENAT :
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
HK$ AT 10,782 12,771
us$ ET 97,541 125,455
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(HE]LD 2,430 3,122
110,753 141,348
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values ARTRCEBEATEKX  EHZKE
as the impact of discounting is not significant. BERAAFERE
RERRZERARAR o —T - —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

21 BORROWINGS (continued) 21 BE @
As at 31 December 2022, the repayment terms of the borrowings RZEBE_—F+-A=+—0 &&H
without taking into account the effect of repayment on demand BB BTN\t RIREREE RN
clauses are as follows: LT [EENERBNT
2022 2021
—E-— —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 year PMFER 61,450 64,231
Between 1 and 2 years 122 2[4 23,067 30,843
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 7 A 25,057 44,704
Over 5 years SEP E 1,179 1,570
110,753 141,348
The weighted average effective interest rate of the Group's AEEBRZ-_ZE-_—_F+=A=+—H
borrowings at 31 December 2022 is 3.27% per annum (31 BEEMETOERERNER327%
December 2021: 1.52% per annum). —E-—F+-A=+—H:FHMX
1.52%) ©
The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its HE_T-—_FRr_FT=-—F+=A
borrowing facilities during the years ended 31 December 2022 and =+—HIEFE FTEECDETEREE
2021, A 2 R -
Except for bank and other borrowings of approximately BR-ZZEZZF+ZA=1+—A8RT
HK$2,430,000 as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: K H 18 5 492,430,000 0 (Z T = —
approximately HK$3,122,000), which was secured by personal F+ZH=-+—H8 " #3,122,000/% JT)
guarantee of a non-controlling interest of the Group, other bank DA &8 [ FE 45 IR 25 2 (8 A B IR VE R
borrowings were secured by certain property, plant and equipment, o HMR TR B UAREEETY
right-of-use assets and a bank deposit of the Group. ¥ HWELRRE FTABEER AR
THERERRT -
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings REEZ2EEMEECREERT !
are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-C T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) VI S KR A& (1 it6) 18,960 21,245
Right-of-use assets (Note 7) EREEE (Mit7) 27,860 29,077
Bank deposit (Note 16) RITFER(Hit16) 11,717 11,689
Total carrying amount of assets B EE
pledged as security 2 R #E % 58,537 62,011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me 8RR M (R

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as follows:

FE 8 5 MR R % 2 B B AR o A an

21 BORROWINGS (continued) 21 {%E (#8)
At the balance sheet date, the following is the undrawn banking ANEE R ANEEZ B AREAEITER
facilities of the Group: =9/l N
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Floating rate: SZE)FE
Expiring within one year R—F R E|E 280,473 239,784
22 TRADE PAYABLES 22 BEREZERENR

T~
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1-30 days 1%£30H 166,130 169,021
31-60 days 31£60H 400 2,957
61-90 days 61%£90H 152 4,453
Over 90 days 90H M k 1,636 2,001
168,318 178,432
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T

Denominated in: BATEBYIE :
- RMB — AR#E 143,693 148,930
— HK$ — BT 4,892 6,560
- US$ — %7 14,691 17,760
— Other currencies —HEE 5,042 5,182
168,318 178,432

EEEERERAT o« —T - —FER

139



140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERMBHERRME (F)

23 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

23 EtERREMESRIE

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current; mE

Advance from customers (Note) EEENR M ZE) 15,519 19,038
Other payables H fth FE A K18 107,444 125,579
Accruals &R 154,310 131,433
277,273 276,050

Non-current: IERE
Other payables H Ath FE A 5RIE 9,967 11,829
287,240 287,879

The carrying values of these balances approximate their fair values.

Note:
Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance from the Group’s customers.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2022 that was included
in the advance from customers balance at the beginning of the year amounted
to approximately HK$12,857,000 (year ended 31 December 2021: approximately
HK$12,028,000). The Group expects to deliver the goods to satisfy the remaining
performance obligations of these contract liabilities within one year or less.

24 LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 24

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The carrying value of these liabilities

EFEHNREEREEQFERS -

Bat
ABHEEARRAKERPWEZANK

BHE-_Z_—_F+-_A=+—HILEFE"
RENMFABRFEMNRESH ZEBBKRAL
12,857,000 T (BEZE-—E-—F+-A=+—
A I E : 4912,028,0000% 7T) © 2% £ [E 78 81 %
—FRFEREAARNERUBITHEANE
BEZHTBHET -

REFERERZER

KEFERER 2 ERAEEM  BER
BRAREREE - WERBENREE

approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, these balances are

denominated in the following currencies:

HEENFEBEE -

RZE_—_FR T =

—F+=A

=t—8 - UTNIEEIE LEHEH

R
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
HK$ BT 15,992 15,992
PY | 1,494 1,377
17,486 17,369
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE M %R R ME (R

25 EXPENSES BY NATURE 25 BRMEEY X
The following expenses/(gains) are included in cost of sales, STABEERA  DEKA  ITTHES &
distribution costs, administrative expenses and net impairment SREERBEERFBEANNMS (W
losses on financial assets: )5
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories sold EHEFEKAE 948,165 778,228
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ELRD BN &
- Audit services — 2R 2,700 2,500
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BB MR EN
equipment e 55,288 56,047
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEMNITE 9,085 8,717
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEN B 687 853
Other lease expenses* HEmAEms 5,907 6,477
(Reversal of provision)/provision BREFEN (BERED),
for obsolete inventories B (7,405) 19,729
Direct written off of obsolete inventories BEEMERETE 3,303 3,523
Net impairment losses on financial assets CRIEEREEEFE 15,347 47,983
Employee benefit expenses EERFAIMX 424,453 378,044
Transportation expenses EHEMA 84,351 75,165
Exchange losses/(gains) BE N 518 (Mas) 3,062 (962)
Advertising costs HEE XA 16,896 22,329
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER&H
plant and equipment (Wzs), 18 (28) 123
Direct operating expenses arising from an KEEAMASKA
investment property that generates rental Z—IEEREMEZ
income HEEBRXY 36 57
Utilities expenses ~NARX 26,654 23,285

*

These expenses relate to short-term leases. They are directly charged as
expenses and are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

under HKFRS 16.

* ERXEEBEEERE  LEEBE
BRARX YA EERBMBMEE

RIZE169 T2 A

HERME-

26 OTHER INCOME 26 Hlg A
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Rental income (Note 8) eI A (fiEs) 134 351
Income from sales of scrap materials HE BRI 497 642
Government grant (Note (i) BRAT wBh (AT a20)) 8,957 3,404
Others Efth 3,170 3,869
12,758 8,266

Note: B

Government grants represents subsidies from the PRC Government in
relation to certain capital investments of the Group and subsidies from the
Hong Kong Government under the Anti-epidemic fund. There were no
unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to the receipts of

these grants.

() BUAHBETERARAEESE TER
RE B /R A R BB BT ARER &R
MRES Bz A - WEL SR

SR P A AR E AR IGRAT

BB ERER AR

REMEANEM

s —T_HFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

27 EERABEX

2022 2021
—sE-= B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Salaries, wages and bonuses e TEREA 399,841 357,029
Pension costs — defined contribution plans ~ RKE A — R E N ETE 3,000 2,956
Welfare and other expenses BRI & E A 21,612 18,059
424,453 378,044

Five highest paid individuals LEEEHMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 include five directors
(year ended 31 December 2021: five directors) whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 37.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no payments or benefits
in respect of termination of directors’ services, remuneration in
respect of accepting office as director, emoluments in respect of
director’s other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries and other benefits
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are
any payable (year ended 31 December 2021: Nil). No consideration
was provided to or receivable by third parties for making available
directors’ services (year ended 31 December 2021: Nil). There are no
loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors, their
controlled bodies corporate and connected entities (year ended 31
December 2021: Nil).

28 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

HE_T-—_F+-_A=+—HI#F
E AEEREERTFMATIRERS
EFBHEFE-_—F+=ZHA=1+—8
HtFEE - RARESZ) EFHOoMER
BRAMIEE37 -

HE_ZT-_—_F+_A=+—HLHF
B HMEEEEERREESERED
MESEIMHREFREL NG RES
EMESBS M TR - phE
EREEHEEARRKEWBARSE
B EMREmRAES L A RERNS
LA R Bt F 25 5 INEERE LA B IE R 3R
HEzEzZ-—4F+A=+—H8Lt
FE:E) - HMERERNEERS MM
Bz ARBRENEZ AU MEKRZ
REFEE-Z-_—F+=-F=+—8
ItEE E) - HENEE EE 2T
rHEENEEERASEAZER
EERIEMRG (BEZT=Z—F
+—A=+—HItFE : &) -

8 BAEEUR AR BF#E AR AR

2022 2021

—E-— B

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHER FHIT

Interest expenses on borrowings BEZAMERZ (4,128) (1,990)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBGEZFEMX (590) (435)
Finance costs B 75 A AN (4,718) (2,425)
Financeincome . BBMA 598 %62
Finance costs, net B T AR AN 5 58 (4,125) (1,463)
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29 SUBSIDIARIES

Name of company

GEL:

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

ERRIGER
LRRRED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE M %R R ME (R

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEEBREEH AN

Ming Fai Holdings Limited
HEERARLR

Ming Fai Asia Pacific
Company Limited

PESABRAA

Ming Fai Enterprise International
Company Limited

PEEZER
BRAF

Ming Fai Industrial (Shenzhen)
Company Limited

RERX (RI)BRAR

H-Square Hospitality Total
Solution Company Limited

WHEBEERERRAA

Shenzhen H-Square
Hospitality Total Solution
Company Limited

RREREERERRA

H-Square Hospitality Total
Solution (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.

H-Square Hospitality Total
Solution (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

ABRLAS ARALAT

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

B BRALAT

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

A BRELAF

The PRC, limited liability
company (Taiwan, Hong
Kong and Macau's sole
proprietorship of legal
person)

mE BREAR
%ABE)

a(akR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

FE BRELLRA

The PRC, limited liability
company (Taiwan, Hong
Kong and Macau's sole
proprietorship of legal
person)

Al E BREAR
EAEE)

F(rka

Cambodia, limited liability
company

RER BRALAF

Investment holding; Hong Kong
REER: BB

Trading of hospitality supplies

products, operating supplies and

equipment and health care and
hygienic products; Hong Kong

HEREREREER 2ER
mREEEREEEREER
LRE S

Trading of hospitality supplies

products, operating supplies and

equipment and health care and
hygienic products; Hong Kong
ﬁ /@EL FDD;EEDD E-

m ﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁu@&ﬁiﬁ
mEE

Manufacturing and trading of
hospitality supplies products,

trading of operating supplies and

equipment and manufacturing
and trading of health care and
hygienic products; the PRC
HERHEBEEEREER
HECERRRERBURLE
LEERFERREERR:
E

Trading of operating supplies and
equipment; Hong Kong
HELERRMREE B8

Trading of operating supplies and
equipment; the PRC

HERERAMRRE T

Trading of operating supplies and
equipment; Cambodia
RELERDRRE  REE

29 B2
Particulars ~ Ownership interest held by Ownership
of issued the Group interest
share capitall  AEEAHEEEES held by
registered non-controlling
capital 2022 2021 interest
BRAIRE/ FRRER
HfERZ FRsE
#ff -B--F -®--f i
US$100 100% 100% -
100% 7T 100% 100% -
HK$10,000,000 100% 100% -
10,000,000% 7t 100% 100% -
HK$1,000,000 100% 100% -
1,000,000/ 100% 100% -
HK$50,000,000 100% 100% -
50,000,000/ 7T 100% 100% -
HK$1,000 100% 100% -
1,000/ 100% 100% -
HK$50,000,000 100% 100% -
50,000,000/ 7T 100% 100% -
Cambodian Riels 100% - -
400,000,000
400,000,000 100% - -
RERER
AIEERERBERAR o —TZ_FFHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERMBHERRME (F)

29 SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued) 29 B A T @)
Particulars ~ Ownership interest held by Ownership
of issued the Group interest
share capitall  AEEAHAEEER held by
Place of incorporation Principal activities registered non-controlling
Name of company and kind of legal entity and place of operation capital 2022 2021 interest
BRTRE/ FERER
TR ER EMER2 FishaE
2% HRRRER TEEBRERAES CRE S S i
IKONE Design Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Provision of professional solutions HK$1,000 100% 100% -
company in product design, corporate
branding, gifts & premiums, and
event management services;
Hong Kong
TERRVERHERLT  BE BRERLH RUEZEERET  LER 1,000%7T 100% 100% -
mERENR Bm
EBRERY FE
IKONE Design (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited liability Provision of professional solutions  HK$2,000,000 100% 100% -
Limited company (Taiwan, Hong in product design, corporate
Kong and Macau's sole branding, gifts & premiums, and
proprietorship of legal event management services; the
person) PRC
TEREM &R mEEREELA(ABE REIZFELRG  GER 2,000,000 100% 100% -
(RN BRAF EABE) BERENR Bak
EEHEERSE T
Ming Fai Innovative Skin Care  Hong Kong, limited liability Manufacturing and trading of HK$100,000 100% 100% -
Lab Limited company hospitality supplies products
and health care and hygienic
products; Hong Kong
i e i & BREEAF HERHEEEMEREERR 1000007 100% 100% -
BRAA REEERELRAR: BB
Ming Fai Enterprise (Cambodia)  Cambodia, limited liability Manufacturing and trading of US$16,000,000 100% 100% -
Co., ltd. company hospitality supplies products and
trading of operating supplies and
equipment; Cambodia
Ming Fai Enterprise (Cambodia) ®&% @ AR ETA A RERHEBELEREERR 16,000,005 100% 100% -
Co, Ltd. HELERMRRE K%
Wayoutokushin Co., Ltd. Japan, limited liability Product development and trading ~ JPY140,000,000 51% 51% 49%
company of body care products; Japan
HABLRBER AX - BRALARF FEEEENFAERES  HA 140,000000RE 51% 51% 49%
Quality Amenities Supply Singapore, limited liability Trading of hospitality supplies Singapore dollar 100% 100% -
Pte. Limited company products, operating supplies and 100,000
equipment and health care and
hygienic products; Singapore
Quality Amenities Supply g BREALA HEBEREREER 28R 100,000 100% 100% -
Pte. Limited mRRERERERREER Mg
m AT
Teng Xun Limited Cambodia, limited liability Manufacturing and trading of S$4,000,000 100% 100% -
company hospitality supplies products and
trading of operating supplies and
equipment; Cambodia
Teng Xun Limited RER BRELAA HERFEEEHEREERR  4,000,000%7 100% 100% -
HELERDREE  RAE
Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies  India, limited liability company ~ Manufacturing and trading of Indian Rupee 51% 51% 49%
Private Limited hospitality supplies products and 238,300,530
trading of operating supplies and
equipment; India
Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies ~ EDE - BRET A HERHERELEREERDR 38,300,530 51% 51% 49%
Private Limited HESERmRER  OF AEEL

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

30 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 30

The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

FERBHERME (E)

RSB

RiFEE2EERZNG(BE) WMR5E
MERER

2022 2021
—=E_—= B —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Current income tax: BVERFTIS R -

- Hong Kong profits tax —BBRER 11,593 2,653
- PRC enterprise income tax — B EFTISH 8,354 1,967
- Other overseas profits tax — B8N B 437 529
Adjustments in respect of prior year MAFERAE (728) (770)
19,656 4,379

Deferred income tax expense/(credit) EEFEMRER, (Ke)
(Note 10) (Bfst10) 488 (859)
20,144 3,520

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates prevailing in
the jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax, Singapore
corporate income tax and Cambodia corporate income tax are
calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%), 25% (2021: 25%), 17%
(2021: 17%) and 20% (2021: 20%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2022 respectively.

Taxes on other overseas profits have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

B Ty A SR A 2 T 4 )
{03 L RS ©

BBNEM  PECEMSH - N
EMSHARIBRECEMBRIVEZR
HE—_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHF
EAFTERT AT D BA165% (ZF
T —F 1 165%) *25% (ZF - —F:
25%) 17% (ZZT=—F :17% ) &
20% (=T = —4F : 20%) & -

Hip/gsMNa i 2 IR AR B Z P
EREER 2ERNRERBEEWIRITA
- 2ELEME -

HIEFERIER AR AT ¢ —T - _FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

30 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The difference between the actual income tax charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the amounts
which would result from applying the enacted tax rates to profit/
(loss) before income tax can be reconciled as follows:

30 FTBFHBAXZ @

FAEEERERTERMAEHR S HEEZ
B A OB X Bt R 5P S B AT B (B
BIFEMSSRCEZREHRLOT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit/(loss) before income tax KRetFT BB F, (E18) 89,986 (94,405)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ZiE AR S B R A R &
applicable to profits in the respective a8 MY & 3 A
jurisdictions FrE/TIE 15,414 (22,220)
Income not subject to tax BAERB A A (6,301) (3,094)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR IERF 2,138 10,614
Utilisation of prior year tax losses BRATFE 2 MBEIR (1,926) (677)
Adjustments in respect of prior year WAFERAE (728) (770)
Tax losses for which no deferred income TR ERELEMSHREE
tax asset was recognised BB E 1B 11,547 19,667
Tax charged HIA X 20,144 3,520

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 17% per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (year ended 31 December
2021: 24% per annum). The change is caused by a change in the
profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective jurisdictions.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxation profits is probable. The Group has
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$309,759,000
(31 December 2021: approximately HK$282,853,000) as at 31
December 2022 to offset against future taxable income. These tax
losses expire in the following years:

BE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFEE
MMEFHERBREAREF17% (BHE
B F+-_A=+—HLFE:FT
F24%) - MERE T A B NEEH B
RAMEEE AR R BRI R o

FEFSHEE T EEREHR S
75 3 R PR E AR B K B3R 1 BL P AR 4R
ZREEBEBEER R-_T-_—_F+=
B=+—8 AEBEZRKERHHAEGE
#9309,759,000 T (ZF=—F+=H
=+ —H : #282,853,000/ 7T) » Al K
HARERFUNA - L ERIAE BB R
T3 F RS R -

2022 2021

—E—-= —E-—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

In the first to fifth years inclusive F—FEFNF (BIEGEME) 181,666 160,074
In the sixth to tenth years inclusive ERFEZ T (BEGEME) 13,907 11,912
No expiry date & JEw B 3 114,186 110,867
309,759 282,853
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/
(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

FERBHERME (E)

31 BREF,(FHiE)

(a) EX
FIREANER(EBE) AARRQFHE
ﬁ/\ﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ‘/()&ﬂ@ﬁ%%iﬁﬂﬁ
BITLER  IEE A E

2022 2021
—E_-C —E-—F

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of KRAREE AEL

the Company (HK$'000) w A, (&) (F&r) 75,511 (93,535)
Weighted average number of EEITEBRINE T8

ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (FF&) 725,699 728,839
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREXER(FE)

(expressed in HK cents) (LB ) 10.4 (12.8)

(b) Diluted (b) #58

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, diluted earnings per
share was the same as basic earnings per share as there were
no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding as at 31
December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all of the
outstanding share options had no dilutive effect to the
Company and therefore, diluted loss per share is the same as
basic loss per share.

32 DIVIDENDS

On 25 August 2022, the Board resolved to approve an interim
dividend of HK1.0 cent per share for the six months ended 30 June
2022. Total dividend of approximately HK$7,343,000 was paid out,
including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

The final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2022 of HK3.0 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend of
approximately HK$22,028,000 was resolved by the Board to propose
on 28 March 2023, which is subject to approval at the annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 24 May 2023. This proposed
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in the consolidated
financial statements, but reflected as an appropriation of retained
earnings for the year ended 31 December 2022.

lﬂx%%ﬁ]f‘/()@ﬂg) R TA

AN EE ARG LRE -
EO BT BRI IMEFAEETE -

RZEZ_—F+=_HA=+—H8"
WEDHTETHE ST R W
BHE-_Z-_—_F+=-H=+—H
EFEERESTERANNEGRE
REFHER -

BE-T-—%#+-A=+—AH
W4 - FT R AT 6 2 B R
ARTMBEARELE - RS
165955 1R L 5 P AN S A

32 RE

R—ZE-_—_FNA-_+HB E=Fg
uﬁ:/j&ﬁt/ﬁ@g—g:_ﬁﬁﬂ E+E|
EAREA 2B EERI.0BWL - 49
7,343,000 L2 RERBREEEIRE - B
BRI THREZRHERE RS -

RZE-_=F=A=_+/\H EFZ
BRAEBRBHE_T-_—_F+=-A8
=+—HIEFERFRIPIRBZR3.05(L -
% B 48 %8 4722,028,0007% 7T ﬁ%’%%
—EHFRAZTHHEHBITHAR

ERAF RS EEL AR ETWEO

It R A BB R R AR B B S R RR
SEMNEE 15&59%7%@1_?::

TTA=+—BLEFENSRRERN -

BRIEBRIERR AR A o T _HFFW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

33 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33 SEREARERMTE

148

CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income (a) KRetArEBHBANER,(B#E)
tax to cash generated from/(used in) BREHIKRE (FTA) B
operations & IR
2022 2021
—E—-= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) before income tax Kt ERAER,
(E#8) 89,986 (94,405)
Adjustments for: EEHTFIAE
— Depreciation of property, plant and e JE =
equipment (Note 6) FEIE (Hite) 55,288 56,047
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FREEENE
(Note 7(b)) (KtzE7(b)) 9,085 8,717
— Amortisation of intangible assets — WA EEH
(Note 9(b)) (KtzF9m)) 687 853
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —HEWE BEK
plant and equipment (Note 33(b)) B (k)
B8 (F17233(b) (28) 123
— Finance income (Note 28) — B (B 7#28) (593) (962)
— Finance costs (Note 28) — B ESAAR (H15728) 4,718 2,425
— (Reversal of provision)/provision for —REFER (EHE
obsolete inventories @) R (7,405) 19,729
— Direct written off for obsolete —HEERERSE
inventories (Note 11) (Kiaz11) 3,303 3,523
— Net impairment losses on financial —SMEEREERE
assets (Note 12) FER (BY7E12) 15,347 47,983
— Share of (profit)/loss of —EE—MBE QA2
an associated company CaF) EE (511) 457
— Share of loss of a joint venture —Eh—HeEhEL
BB 207 64
— Fair value gain on an investment ——IHEREWMEZ
property (Note 8) N EWE (FiE8) (1,974) -
— Impairment of goodwill (Note 9(a)) — B RE (A17£9(a)) - 4,759
Changes in working capital: HEEREE
— Inventories -E8 (4,138) (43,860)
— Trade and bills receivables —REWEBZERREE (57,338) (71,236)
— Other assets —HtEE 4,413 (15,246)
— Other financial assets — IR SHR AR 2
at amortised cost HthemEE 1,141 (3,257)
— Trade payables —ERNE SRR 1,829 35,679
— Accruals and other payables —EFERR
HipEfhmE 17,002 (15,303)
— Amount due from an associated — JEUN —RE B 2 A B
company HIE (512) 631
- Amounts due from joint ventures —EREE R ERIE (67) 126
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 4 & 215, (FrA) K
e 130,440 (63,153)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mE M %R R ME (R

33 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33 FERERERWZTE @
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEVE BERREFRS
equipment MIE
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from REEBEERERD  LEWE -
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: B K 2 AR PG sRIE B4R
2022 2021
—E-= —ET - —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Net book amount: BREDFE
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - WERRE
(Note 6) (Hi7te) 309 1,662
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMEEZ
plant and equipment (Note 25) Wz, (E518) (f17225) 28 (123)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME  BERZE
plant and equipment Fr1S 308 337 1,539
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing () REMETH2EBZYHER
activities
Liabilities from financing activities
REMEZBZERE
Loans from
non-
Lease controlling
Borrowings liabilities interests Total
FER
RE HEgE ERNEN @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHEL FHEL
(Aaatllanay 2021 R N-F-—F-A-R AL, 003 7o 148652
Cash flows Rene 18,006 (5,852) - 12,154
Addition to lease liabilities HEEERE - 1,134 - 1,134
Finance cost (Note 28) SRR (H13228) 1,990 435 - 2,425
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ JMEZHE 251 128 (149) 230
_ Asat31December202  R-F-_—Ft-A=t-R [ T B8 17369 164,595
Cash flows BemE (34,604) (6,412) 286 (40,730)
Addition to lease liabilities HEEERE - 9,463 - 9,463
Finance cost (Note 28) BB (H/3228) 4,128 590 - 4,718
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ JMEZHE (119) (519) (169) (807)
As as at 31 December 2022 W-Z--#+-F=+—-H 110,753 9,000 17,486 137,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

34 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the capital commitments of the Group
were as follows:

34 BEARIE

R-_EBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H £x58
H)E ARAPEMT

2022 2021
—E-— —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Contracted but not provided for in the BRI R
consolidated financial statements frE B mERAEE 19,183 21,843

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control.

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. CHING Chi
Fai, Mr. CHING Chi Keung, Mr. LIU Zigang and Ms. CHAN Yim

35 BEMAXRS

e (A — T REEHI 5 —T7 - R EMEK
MEERRETEEATESN  BRE
BT o ZEHARIESI AR T IR S
RAHE )T

REBEZHEEGR T RESELLE 2
HoeL  BIFRIEERRYMSL L -

Ching.

(a) Significant related party transactions

The Group has carried out significant transactions with the

following related parties:

Name of related party
S BB

Principal business activities

(a) EXBABAE RS

AU E AT B i T E A
%5

Relationship with the Group
BEREEZEER

Ming Fai Plastic Industrial
Company (“MF Plastic”)

PR EXNA
(TeREZRE])

Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd. ("QASM")

Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd. (IQASMJ)

iBridge Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited
("iBridge Technology”)

BEERE CRY) BRAF]
(TREER )

Advance Medical Designs (Hong

Kong) Limited (“AMDHK")
Advance Medical Designs
(Hong Kong) Limited

(TAMDHK J)

Manufacturing of plastic products
(Ceased manufacturing of plastic
products since April 2003)

REPREM(B_ZZT=F
MR I REBRER)

Trading of hospitality supplies
products, operating supplies and
equipment and health care and
hygienic products

HEBEHEREER  ©EMMm

SRR R AR R

Provision of information technology
services

REBMBERS

Trading of disposable infection
control products

5 BIZE R B o

Partnership owned by Mr. CHING
Chi Fai, Mr. YEUNG Tin Loi and
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

RIEEEAEE BRKREER

IEBEEMBEENAREE

Associated company of the Group

ZAS

Ji]

BAF

kil

ST

el

Joint venture of the Group

IS S ES

JiE]

iy

o
e
B>

Joint venture of the Group

AEBENEEDRE
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Significant related party transactions

(Continued)

FERBHERME (E)

35 BEE RS @)
(a) EXBEEBARS (@)

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated BRRG A IEmEREME D AT
financial statements, the Group had the following significant BENN REBHEBEH T ETH
transactions with related parties: EARSIT :
2022 2021
—=E—-= —T-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
(i) Sales of goods () HEEEMm
—to QASM — FQASM 13,990 5,107
— to iBridge Technology —TRIEER 33 177
—to AMDHK — FAMDHK 92 29
(i) Purchase of goods (i) BEE®R
— from iBridge Technology —BRETERE 234 199
(iii) Rental charged (i) WERM A
— by MF Plastic —EREB R 1,322 1,381

Sales of goods are transacted at prices mutually agreed
between the parties.

Purchases of goods and services are transacted at prices
mutually agreed between the parties.

The Group leased certain properties from MF Plastic as one of
its production bases in the PRC. The transaction is carried out
at prices agreed between the parties.

HEBmMDIRTANS 2HERH
ENEBRETRS -

BEEMERB RN ZHE
ERBENEBRETRZS -

REEMBAEBBRERASE TYWE
ERERPREMER —FEAEER
o b X B HIRETH A ZEE A
ER BT o

BRIEBRIERR AR A o T _HFFW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)
)

35

MEmEAME (F)

(b) Key management compensation

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

35 BEE RS @)
(b) TEEEBAEMNE

purchases of goods

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Basic salaries, housing allowances, ¥ - (£ £ - EMERL
other allowances and benefits-in-kind KIES BRI 9,385 7,592
Contributions to pension plans RIKEEFEIHR 126 116
9,511 7,708
(c) Year end balances arising from sales and (c) SHERBEEmNFRLER

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET

Amounts due from JEUTIA TS %% 75 ;RIB
— QASM (Note 13) —QASM (A75%13) 2,848 2,338
— iBridge Technology - BEERE 177 189
— AMDHK — AMDHK 345 266
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OF THE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

FERBHERME (E)

36 ANAEERERRFHREED

Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December NR-—B-_—F+=-—A=+—B2
2022 AAREEEER
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—%
Note HK$000 HK$000
Kz FET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE )
Investment in a subsidiary N—REHERFNKRE 235,673 235,673
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 235,673 235,673
Current assets REBEE
Other current assets HinsEE 192 289
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGIE | 790,761 791,535
Amount due from a joint venture JE U — F‘ﬂ NI ol 13 13
Tax receivables JEULFR T - 267
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁiﬁiﬁ EEIRE 3,066 2,654
Total current assets REBEEMAE 794,032 794,758
Total assets EEHE 1,029,705 1,030,431
EQUITY Em
Equity attributable to the KAREFA
owners of the Company Bl ER
Share capital A& 7,343 7,343
Shares held under the Scheme SAEITER KRG (8,196) (6,051)
Share premium & imE 613,261 613,261
Other reserves H b A 405,940 405,211
Total equity wER 1,018,348 1,019,764
LIABILITIES =i
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables JEST B R N E A BN 3R 1,530 993
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST Y /B 2 B 5 IE 9,490 9,490
Tax payable FETF IR 146 -
Dividends payable FEFT IR E 191 184
Total current liabilities REBAEEE 11,357 10,667
Total liabilities BEA% 11,357 10,667
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 1,029,705 1,030,431

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 28 March 2023 and was signed on its behalf.

ARAMEERBERNR_-_T-_=F=A
“HN\BREFERAETAHUATEER

REE

CHING Chi Fai CHING Tsun Wah
Director Director
EE EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERMBHERRME (F)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

36

AAREEREBEREFEEE

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (%)
Note A: Reserve movement of the Company for MZA: BZE-Z2=-—_F+=A
the year ended 31 December 2022 =+—§ ﬂ:ifﬁzlﬁ’&ﬂ
REEE
Merger  Share-based
reserve compensation Retained
(Note) reserves earnings Total
BOHRE  UROXAN
(Hiz) & G REEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET THT TET
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-ZB--§-A-H2&H 224,147 27,897 153,957 406,001
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year REZHEF - - 10,143 10,143
Total comprehensive income 2 HENHAH - - 10,143 10,143
Final dividend relating 0 2020  —E-EFEZ RHRE - - (10,933) (10,933)
Lapse of share options BRELM - (27,897) 27,897 -
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—-F+-H=+-Hz&& 224,147 - 181,064 405,211
Balance at 1 January 2022 R-B--F-F—-Bz&H 224,147 - 181,064 405,211
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year AEERF - - 7,967 7,967
Total comprehensive income 2 E K4 - - 7,967 7,967
Interim dividend relating t0 2022 —ZEZZFE 7+ HK S - - (7,238) (7,238)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R=B=Z=f+=A=t+-H2&tH 224,147 - 181,793 405,940
Note: et -

RRBE G GHREBIENIMERRNRERAE R
BAEERMBARNR _SRLFAHRTE
BERVBERBRAAHSIIEMEENRN
i (B H) Z 5 -

Merger reserve of the Company represents the difference between the cost
of investment in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from the application of merger
accounting in consolidating the financial information of the affected entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me 8RR M (R

37 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 37 EERFTETHRAEZHE
EMOLUMENTS
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to Directors of KEBER TEREARREZSHI S &
the Company by the Group are as follows: =R N
2022 2021
—E-C ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Fees we 1,350 1,350
Basic salaries, housing allowances, % - EFERL - HAbERL
other allowances and benefits-in-kind KIES B 8,785 6,992
Contributions to pension plans BRIREEHEIH R 126 116
10,261 8,458
The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the HE—_ZTE-_—_F#+-_A=+—HILtHF
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows: B ARAIZSEETREETHAENDH
20T :
Employer's
contribution
Share-based to a retirement
Discretionary payment benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense scheme Total
BEREHK
DRGBRME  BREHEW
Expg we e RiERa ik # k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FiET TR FER FER FET

Executive Directors (Note (i) HITES (M)

Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEBEAE 120 1314 743 - 18 2,195
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEats 120 797 542 - 18 1,477
Mr. LIU Zigang 2FRIEE 120 961 762 - 54 1,897
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEELE 120 797 692 - 18 1,627
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEBRE 120 1,423 754 - 18 2315
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan Lk 150 - - - _ 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong LS 3 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson BREBEEE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit Brers 150 - - - - 150
Non-Executive Director FHTES

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BREELL 150 - - - - 150
Total o] 1,350 5,292 3,493 - 126 10,261
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GERMBHERRME (F)

37 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:

37 EERTETHAEZHS

(%)

RE-F-—F+-A=t+-AL*%
& AAREEEREBTHABHH
emT :

Employer's

Share-based contribution

Discretionary payment  to a retirement
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense  benefit scheme Total
EEFRIK
RAXA  RHEEIE
BEMA ik e MEEL 0553 HX ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TAR TAER FER
Executive Directors (Note (i)) HITES (M)
Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEBRE 120 1314 360 - 18 1,812
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEELE 120 797 263 - 18 1,198
Mr. LIU Zigang B 7RI 120 968 368 - 4 1,500
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEERE 120 797 338 - 18 1,273
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEEEE 120 1,423 364 - 18 1,925
Independent Non-Executive BUEBTES
Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan A EA 150 - - - - 150
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace (Note (i) B4R I& 54 (ff7#(i) 143 - - - - 143
Mr. NG Bo Kwong REFKEE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson BEEE s 150 - . _ _ 150
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit (Note (i) #5454 (B 5#ii) 7 - - - - 7
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching R85+ 150 - _ _ _ 150
Total FkE 1,350 5,299 1,693 - 116 8,458
Notes: Wit

(i) The role of chief executive officer has been performed collectively by all

the Executive Directors, including the Chairman of the Company.

(i) Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace resigned as Independent Non-Executive

Director on 13 December 2021.

(i)~ Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit was appointed as Independent Non-Executive

Director on 14 December 2021.
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